Public Document Pack

Civic Centre,

Arnot Hill Park,

e lng Arnold,
Nottingh hi

Borough Council otting I\? (r3n58 6{%

Agenda

Cabinet

Date: Thursday 7 December 2011

Time: 12.30 pm

Place: Chappell Room

For any further information please contact:
Alec Dubberley

Service Manager Democratic Services
0115901 3906

Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3906 if you need it in large print, audio
or another format.



Cabinet

Membership

Chair
Vice-Chair

Observers:

Councillor John Clarke

Councillor Michael Payne

Councillor Peter Barnes
Councillor David Ellis
Councillor Gary Gregory
Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth
Councillor Henry Wheeler

Councillor Chris Barnfather



10

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence.

To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 2
November 2017.

Declaration of Interests.
South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy
Report of the Chief Executive.

Gedling Conversation 2017

Report of the Director of Organisational Development & Democratic Services.

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) Annual Audit and
Update

Report of the Director of Organisational Development & Democratic Services.

Change to Outside Body Representation

Report of the Service Manager Democratic Services.
Progress Reports from Portfolio Holders.
Member's Questions to Portfolio Holders.

Any other items the Chair considers urgent.

Page

11 -84

85 - 88

89 -94

95 - 96



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

MINUTES
CABINET

Thursday 2 November 2017

Councillor John Clarke (Chair)

Councillor Michael Payne Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth
Councillor Peter Barnes Councillor Henry Wheeler
Councillor David Ellis

Observers: Councillor Chris Barnfather

Absent: Councillor Gary Gregory

Officers in Attendance: D Alvey, H Barrington, A Dubberley, M Hill and
D Wakelin

48 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

49

50

51

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Gregory.

TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE
MEETING HELD ON 12 OCTOBER 2017.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be
approved as a correct record.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
None

QUARTER 2 BUDGET MONITORING, PERFORMANCE DIGEST &
VIREMENT REPORT

The Deputy Chief Executive introduced a report, which had been
circulated prior to the meeting, informing Members of the likely outturn of
the Revenue and Capital Budgets for the 2017/18 financial year as at
the end of Quarter 2.The Director of Organisational Development and
Democratic Services provided some details of performance for the same
period.

RESOLVED to:

Page 5



52

53

54

1) Note the progress against Improvement Actions and Performance
Indicators in the 2017/19 Gedling Plan;

2) Approve the General Fund Revenue Budget virements included in
Appendix 1 to the report;

3) Note the use of reserves and funds during quarter two as detailed
in Appendix 2 to the report; and

4) Approve the changes to the capital programme included in
paragraph 2.2.3 of the report.

PRUDENTIAL CODE INDICATOR MONITORING 2017/18 AND
QUARTERLY TREASURY ACTIVITY REPORT FOR QUARTER
ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

The Deputy Chief Executive introduced a report, which had been
circulated prior to the meeting, informing Members of the performance
monitoring of the 2017/18 Prudential Code Indicators, and advising
Members of the quarterly treasury activity, as required by the Treasury
Management Strategy.

RESOLVED to:

1) Note the report, together with the Treasury Activity Report
2017/18 for Quarter 2, at Appendix 1 to the report, and the
Prudential and Treasury Indicator Monitoring 2017/18 for Quarter
2, at Appendix 3 to the report; and

2) Approve the amendment to the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement for 2017/18, to add the use of Property Funds to the
list of approved investment instruments referred to at 2.7(i) above,
and refer the amendment to Full Council for approval as required
by the regulations.

FORWARD PLAN

Consideration was given to a report of the Service Manager, Elections
and Members’ Services, which had been circulated prior to the meeting,
detailing the Executive’s draft Forward Plan for the next four month
period.

RESOLVED:

To note the report.

PROGRESS REPORTS FROM PORTFOLIO HOLDERS.

Councillor Henry Wheeler (Housing, Health and Well-being)

Page 6



e A new accountable officer was in post at the Clinical
Commissioning Group who would be overseeing a restructure of
the group.

¢ A recent meeting was held which provided an update on the work
of the CCG including planned improvements to some GP
premises, work to support young carers through their schools, an
action plan to address falls in the elderly and work to help
diabetes sufferers manage their own conditions more effectively.
Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth (Growth and Regeneration)

e The most recent Gedling Business Partnership meeting was well
attended although new businesses are always welcome.

e An Apprenticeship Fair would be held in February.

e A meeting was held last month to update on housing delivery
progress and work with developers to encourage construction on
stalled sites has taken place.

Councillor David Ellis (Public Protection)

e The Council’'s “Warm Homes on Prescription” scheme had been
recently recognised as the best in the East Midlands.

e Consultation events on the Selective Licensing Scheme for
Netherfield had taken place and further such events were
planned.

Councillor Peter Barnes (Environment)

e Work was underway to design a scheme to install at the new
Haywood Road Park.

e Improvement works at Carlton Cemetery were progressing well
and scheduled for completion at the end of the month.

e Work to secure the disused tunnel at the Country Park was now
complete.

Councillor Michael Payne (Resources and Reputation)
e Reminders for residents on when to put their bins out were now
being sent to residents who had opted-in via the keep me posted

service.

Councillor John Clarke (Leader of the Council)

Page 7



55

56

57

58

e From the Community Development portfolio it was reported that
the play days across the Borough were very well attended.

e A recent informal meeting was held with Members of the Seniors
Council who would be meeting again in the New Year.

e A useful meeting was recently held with other Nottinghamshire
Districts to share best practice on how to deal with illegal traveller
encampments.

e The Bonington Theatre would be live streaming performances of
the National Ballet from the Royal Opera House.

e A meeting was recently held with Gedling Homes to discuss a
range of issues.

MEMBER'S QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS.
None received.

ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT.
None.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

Councillor Clarke introduced a report relating to the purchase of Arnold
Market. He explained that there was information in the report that was
commercially sensitive and legally privileged. He therefore moved that
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for consideration of
the item.

RESOLVED:

That Members being satisfied that the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information that
under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
and press be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the
ensuing report on the grounds that the report involves the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 3 and 5 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

ARNOLD MARKET
The Service Manager for Economic Growth and Regeneration
introduced a report, including a not for publication appendix, which had

been circulated prior to the meeting, seeking approval to acquire the
Arnold Market site and associated buildings.

Page 8



RESOLVED:

1) To recommend to Council that a budget is established to acquire
the Arnold Market site (as shown on the Plan at Appendix 1 to the
report) for no more than the sum set out in Exempt Appendix 2 to
the report;

2) That subject to budget approval by Council to:

a) Approve the acquisition of the site using the Council’s
powers under Section 226 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990;

b) Delegate authority to the Chief Executive to agree
Heads of Terms for the acquisition of the site (as shown
on the Plan at Appendix 1 to the report), to make a
formal offer for no more than the maximum price set out
in Exempt Appendix 2 to the report, and, subject to the
offer being accepted, to complete the acquisition of the
site; and

c) Authorise officers to progress proposals for
improvements to the appearance of the site and its

operation, the details of which will be reported to
members at a future date.

The meeting finished at 2.25 pm

Signed by Chair:
Date:

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 4

Gedling #

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy 2017-21
Date: 7 December 2017

Author: Report of the Chief Executive

Wards Affected

All

Purpose

To seek approval for the South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy
2017-2021 at Appendix one.

Key Decision

This is a key decision because it is likely to be significant in terms of its effect
on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards of
the Borough.

Background

1.1 The draft South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy was
presented to Cabinet for consideration and feedback in April with the
recommendation that the final strategy was presented to Cabinet once
the Homelessness Reduction Bill was enacted. The previous paper to
Cabinet is attached as Appendix two.

1.2 The Council has strategic responsibility for meeting our legislative
requirements under the Homelessness Act 2002. The Homelessness
Act 2012 requires Local Authorities to publish a new homelessness
strategy within a period of 5 years.

1.3 This is the second joint homelessness strategy for South
Nottinghamshire. The last joint homelessness strategy was published
in 2013 and is due to expire at the end of this year.

Proposal

2.1 The Homelessness Reduction Bill was enacted on 27t April. Since

Page 11



2.2

2.3

2.4

that time, the South Nottinghamshire Councils have benefitted from a
greater understanding of the implications of the Act and a consultation
draft Homelessness Code of Guidance is currently out for
consultation.

Whilst this has resulted in a need to amend the action plan to fully take
account of the implications of the Act, the understanding of
implications at the time the draft report was presented to Cabinet has
remained correct and has meant that the body of the strategy remains
unchanged.

As outlined in the previous report to Cabinet, the focus of the Strategy
remains on the following priorities:

o Minimising demand through delivering interventions to ensure
that households know where to access advice and support at the
appropriate time that assists them to avoid or deal with issues
that could lead to homelessness.

o Reducing the extent of crisis presentations by working in a
more joined up way to identify those households at high risk of
homelessness

o Delivering effective services at the point of contact by
ensuring that households who approach services across South
Nottinghamshire will be able to access effective advice and
assistance to prevent homelessness

o Providing appropriate accommodation options by ensuring
that partners are able to facilitate access to appropriate
accommodation to prevent and resolve homelessness in the
short, medium and long term

o Moving people away from homelessness by reducing
incidences of repeat homelessness through enabling a range of
options that will assist people in accessing education, training,
employment or other appropriate support.

The Strategy was developed through the South Nottinghamshire Inter
Agency Homelessness Forum, which includes representatives from
all three Boroughs; the County Council and a number of partner
organisations with a homelessness remit. The strategy has
undergone extensive consultation over a 12 week period (11
November 2016 — 6 February 2017) and provided opportunities for
partners to contribute to the development of the strategy. Consultees
included neighbouring Councils; County Council; Social Landlords;
Nottinghamshire Public Health and third sector organisations dealing

Page 12



2.5

2.6

with homeless clients. Responses were received from a wide range
of partner organisations including Nottinghamshire County Council;
the Probation Service; Homelessness Charities; other Councils; local
colleges; the NHS and private landlord representatives. As reported
to Cabinet in April 2017, overall, the responses confirmed that the
priorities contained within the draft strategy were appropriate.
Significantly, responses very much confirmed the need to ensure
appropriate homelessness prevention services are in place and that
opportunities to bolster access to wider support through partners,
including relating to training opportunities and health, are maximised.

A summary of the consultation responses together with the Council’s
response for consideration by Cabinet is available as appendix three.
Cabinet will note that a number of minor changes have been made to
the original draft Strategy in light of the consultation responses.

The overall focus of the strategy remains on preventing
homelessness. This is reflective of Government priorities and
statutory obligations for local authorities contained in the
Homelessness Reduction Act.

As stated, the body of the Strategy remains as per the draft
presented to Cabinet in April. However, actions covering the
following have been included in the Action Plan to better reflect the
greater understanding of the implications of the Homelessness
Reduction Act:

e Examining ways that support needs can be addressed within
personalised action plans

e Ensuring that staff are fully prepared for the new requirements of
the Homelessness Reduction Act

e Ensuring that partner agencies are fully briefed and prepared for
the new requirements of the Homelessness Reduction Act

e Working with our software provider to ensure our requirements
are communicated and work scheduled in within appropriate
timescales including the need for staff training

e Joint work across the South of the County to provide consistent
advice and information.

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed for the
Strategy which suggests a positive impact of Strategy across all
groups experiencing or at risk of homelessness. The Equalities
Impact Assessment is attached as Appendix four.

Page 13



Alternative Options

3.1 It is a legal requirement to update the homelessness strategy at least
every 5 years, therefore the strategy must be updated by end of the
Calendar year.

3.2 Gedling Borough Council could produce a stand-alone
Homelessness Strategy. However, we work closely with Broxtowe
and Rushcliffe Borough Councils in many aspects of housing and are
able to pool resources; many statutory and voluntary sector agencies
work across the area so they only need a single channel of
engagement rather than three separate relationships and
Nottinghamshire County Council treats the three boroughs as a
single area for the purposes of commissioning housing related
support services.

Financial Implications

4.1 Actions planned will be contained within existing budgets. Any
additional costs are subject to appropriate internal and external
funding streams being identified

Appendices
5.1 South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy and Action Plan

5.2 Draft South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy - report to
Cabinet 6 April 2017

5.3 Summary of responses received to the Homelessness Strategy
consultation

54 Equalities Impact Assessment

Background Papers
6.1 South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy 2013-2017
Recommendation(s)

That Cabinet:

Approve the South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy 2017-2021 at
Appendix one.

Page 14



Reasons for Recommendations

To ensure that the Council has a Homelessness Strategy in place which
focusses resources on priorities that make a practical difference with a strong
focus on preventing homelessness and meets statutory requirements.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



/T abed

South Nottinghamshire
Homelessness Strategy
2017-2021

Appendix 1



gT obed

Contents

Foreword

Introduction

Homelessness in South Nottinghamshire — key findings

Where we want to be: the challenges, opportunities and priorities
Delivering the homelessness strategy

The Homelessness Action Plan

Councillors Foreword




6T obed

As the Housing Portfolio Holders for Broxtowe, Gedling and Rushcliffe Councils, we are pleased to introduce
South Nottinghamshire’s second joint Homelessness Strategy. We would like to take this opportunity to thank all
of the organisations and individuals who have contributed towards its development.

Since the South Nottinghamshire Councils produced the first joint homelessness strategy in 2013, significant
progress has been to improve services and deliver a range of housing initiatives, of which a number of examples
are outlined within this Strategy. We recognise that at a time of increasing pressures on homelessness services
due to factors such as welfare reform; rising house prices and increased funding challenges for support services,
it is more important than ever to ensure that existing services are effective at rising to new and increasing
challenges.

The strategy outlines the key homelessness issues in South Nottinghamshire and sets our priorities for action.
We are determined to continue to work effectively with partners across the public, private and voluntary sectors
to maximise opportunities to deliver this Strategy. If you think you can help us to deliver on these priorities
please come and talk to us.



0z abed

Introduction

The three Boroughs of Broxtowe, Gedling and Rushcliffe have strategic responsibility for meeting our legislative
requirements under the Homelessness Act 2002. Section 1(4) of the Homelessness Act 2002 requires Local
Authorities to publish a new homelessness strategy within a period of 5 years. This is the second joint
homelessness review for the three Boroughs; the last joint homelessness strategy was published in 2013.

The South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy sets out how the three Councils and our partners aim to
tackle homelessness over the next five years.

By building on successful partnerships and service provision and by developing new and improved ways of
working we can assist anyone who is threatened by or is experiencing homelessness in South Nottinghamshire.

The strategy sets the agenda, enabling us to continue to meet the needs of people in South Nottinghamshire
and to eliminate the threat of homelessness from their lives which fully reflects the national priorities for a
continued focus on homelessness prevention.

The South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy sets out:

* The homelessness challenges facing South Nottinghamshire
* How the strategy was developed

» The key objectives of the strategy

* How we will deliver the strategy



T¢ obed

The strategy sets the framework for improving access to housing. Supporting vulnerable people and minimising
rough sleeping continue to be our priorities, together with a greater emphasis on developing clear pathways and
effective preventive interventions.

Since publication in 2013, there has been significant progress through the implementation of South
Nottinghamshire’s first homelessness strategy through stronger partnership working between the three Councils
and our partners.

The strategy was based on the following main strategic objectives:

No one should have to sleep rough in South Nottinghamshire

All local authorities will work with partners to reduce the number of homeless applications they need to
consider year on year

All councils will minimise the use of Bed & Breakfast accommodation for homeless households, with the
long term aim of ending it altogether

Knowing that there is insufficient social housing to meet demand, all potentially homeless clients will get
the help they need to access private rented housing

All young people in South Nottinghamshire should learn about homelessness, realistic housing options,
domestic abuse and healthy relationships in school

All client groups with special needs will have clear and up to date referral pathways so that it is clear which
agency is responsible for providing services to them at what time
5



z¢ obed

Key Achievements

The three Councils have worked effectively to improve homelessness services over recent years, examples of
these achievements are outlined below:

¢ Delivering over 500 affordable homes though successful partnerships during 2013 to 2016

e Successfully bidding for funding to commission research into the accommodation and support needs of 19-
35 year olds to identify current gaps, further challenges through welfare reform and identify opportunities to
minimise negative impacts

¢ As part of a Nottinghamshire-wide consortium, successfully bidding for £370,000 of funding over 2 years to
provide a county-wide rough sleeper service and extend street outreach services across Nottinghamshire

e Achieving 4,645 homelessness preventions from 2013 to 2016 across the three areas

e Successful provision and support of accommodation for 56 Syrian Refugees as part of the Syrian
Vulnerable Person’s Resettlement Programme and Vulnerable Children’s Relocation Programme

e Successfully delivering Private Landlords partnership events, attended by over 60 landlords and letting
agents

e Working with Broxtowe Youth Homelessness to deliver educational sessions to over 6,000 year 10 and 11
students in South Nottinghamshire to raise awareness, challenge stereotypes and equip young people with
the knowledge to make informed housing choices and access support



¢¢ obed

o Utilisation of temporary accommodation at Hound Lodge and Elizabeth House to meet housing need
across the three areas

e Contributing to the development of the County-wide Housing & Health Commissioning Group and the
development of the Health and Wellbeing Plan, including identification of best practice pilot schemes

¢ Reviewed the implementation of the new Housing Allocations Policy and the Choice Based Letting system
to ensure that it is accessible and meeting the needs of local residents

The three South Nottinghamshire Boroughs of Broxtowe, Gedling and Rushcliffe have a strong track record of
collaborative working between the three areas and with other partners to prevent and relieve homelessness.
This includes operating with a joint choice based lettings system for the three areas and broadly aligned
allocations policies. The three Councils also collaborate closely on issues such as the provision of temporary
accommodation. Additionally, the Councils work closely with Nottinghamshire County Council which has
responsibility relating to a range of functions linked to homelessness, such as relating to younger persons
supported accommodation as they hold the duty to assist under 18 year olds.

The South Nottinghamshire Councils are fully aware that effective partnership working is essential to delivering
this homelessness strategy. There are a range of partnerships in place to deliver and monitor the strategy.
Notably, the South Nottinghamshire Inter Agency Homelessness Forum was established in July 2012 to bring
together a wide range of statutory and voluntary agencies involved in preventing homelessness and providing
services to homeless people. The shared strategy and its action plan are far from being the only or main reason
for the forum, but they are intended as a focal point to which all partners can contribute their actions and
achievements and build a joined-up picture of the services available. The authorities have undertaken to report



vz abed

progress against the action plan to the forum on a regular basis, making it transparent and accountable, and
avoiding the possibility that the action plan could be “left on the shelf”.

We fully rely on effectively working with our partners; our local communities; large and small private sector
bodies ranging from developers and construction companies to private landlords; the broader public sector and
our local third sector.

We recognise that we are all working to achieve the same goals and that it is in everyone’s interests for South
Nottinghamshire to have homes where people can thrive. However, we also understand that each of our
partners will have their own considerations to take into account which may require a different approach to reflect
local circumstances. Effective partnerships across all sectors built on a foundation of trust and mutual respect
will enable partners to meet the key challenges identified in this strategy.

The last five years has provided very significant challenges with regard to preventing and relieving
homelessness. Most notably, a reduction in the availability of support services has meant that housing options
teams are dealing with increasingly complex workloads and clients with often very significant needs, including
mental health. The reduction in support services means that clients who previously could approach specialist
support services at an early stage are now approaching housing teams when they are at crisis point.

This means that it is more important than ever to ensure that the existing services are effective at rising to new
and increasing challenges underpinned by strong partnerships.



Homelessness Reduction Bill

The increased Government focus on homelessness prevention is welcome. The Homelessness Reduction Bill,
reforms the homelessness duties placed on local authorities to intervene at earlier stages to prevent
homelessness which more closely reflects current legislation in Scotland and Wales.

The Bill is seeking to amend Part 7 of the Housing Act 1996 and requires local authorities to provide new
homelessness services to all individuals affected, not just those protected under existing legislation. Its
measures include:

¢ An extension of the period during which an authority should treat someone as threatened with
homelessness from 28 to 56 days.

¢ Clarification of the action an authority should take when someone applies for assistance having been
served with a section 8 or section 21 notice of intention to seek possession from an assured shorthold
tenancy.

¢ A new duty to prevent homelessness for all eligible applicants threatened with homelessness, including
providing a personal housing plan and keeping such assessments under review until any accommodation
duty is discharged.

¢ A new duty to relieve homelessness for all eligible homeless applicants.

¢ A new duty on public services to notify a local authority if they come into contact with someone they think
may be homeless or at risk of becoming homeless.

e Provision of personal assessments.

Gz abed

The new duties will have a significant impact on the way in which homelessness prevention services are
delivered and how services will link to wider support such as training, employment and health to increase
resilience to homelessness.



Homelessness in South Nottinghamshire — Key Findings

The extract data below provides a summary of housing need in South Nottinghamshire which has helped to
inform the key priorities for action. Whilst this data provides a base of information for the purposes of the
Strategy, it should be noted that a host of evidence is considered when making decisions as to where to allocate

9z abed

resources.

Housing Register Data (as at 17 February 2017)

Total numbers on the housing register

Broxtowe Gedling Rushcliffe
Total number on housing register 1028 828 496
Of which band 1 32 46 11
Of which band 2 140 182 76
Of which band 3/4 856 600 409
Of those on the housing register, current housing situation
Broxtowe Gedling Rushcliffe Total
Bed and Breakfast 1 0 4 5
Council Tenant 324 11 47 382
HM Forces 2 0 0 2
Housing Association Tenant 95 277 136 508
In Social Services Care/Foster Care 3 1 1 5
Living in Hostel 15 4 26

10




)2 abed

Living with Family/Friends 130 113 73 316
Lodging 8 9 10 27
No Fixed Abode/Sofa surfer 26 31 14 71
Non secure tenancy — leased 6 0 1 7
property
Non secure tenancy — own stock 1 1 2 4
Owner Occupier 102 108 64 274
Private Rented Tenant 299 244 111 654
Shared Ownership 1 4 2 7
Sleeping Rough 3 1 5 9
Tied Tenant 1 3 2 6
(blank) 11 18 20 49
Total 1028 828 496 2352
Of those on the housing register, current housing situation
Broxtowe Gedling Rushcliffe Total
Couple 54 34 32 120
Couple + Pregnant 8 6 2 16
Elderly Couple 95 97 51 243
Elderly Single 190 219 141 539
Family + 1 Child 132 92 39 263
Family + 1 Child + Pregnant 9 5 2 16
Family + 2 Children 105 70 26 201
Family + 2 Children + Pregnant 12 5 1 18
Family + 3 Children 72 44 16 132
Family + 3 Children + Pregnant 3 4 7
Family + 4 Children 19 14 7 40

Family + 4 Children + Pregnant

1

11




gz abed

Family + 5 or more Children 3 8 2 13
Single 294 191 157 640
Single + 1 21 24 12 57
Single + Pregnant 10 11 6 27
Single with overnight carer 1 3 2 6
Total 1028 828 496 2352
Homelessness Data
Broxtowe

2013 2014 2015 2016
Homeless decisions 39 34 26 25
Acceptance decisions 10 9 9 11
Of acceptance Parents no longer Parents no longer Loss of rented or tied Rent arrears on:
decisions, main accommodation: Private sector dwellings

reasons with numbers

willing or able to
accommodate (2)

willing or able to
accommodate (2)

Termination of assured
shorthold tenancy (2);
of rented or tied
accommodation:
Reasons other than
termination of assured
shorthold tenancy (2)

(2); Loss of rented or
tied accommodation:
Termination of assured
shorthold tenancy (2)

Of acceptance 16-24 (3) 16-24 (4) 16-24 (1) 16-24 (3)
decisions, age 25-44 (6) 25-44 (4) 25-44 (6) 25-44 (6)
breakdown with 45-59 (1) 45-59 (1) 45-59 (2) 45-59 (2)
numbers

Of acceptance 6 7 8 9

decisions, number with

12




62 obed

children or pregnant

Of acceptance 10 9 4 8
decisions, number

placed in temporary

accommodation

Number of cases 401 453 445 427

where homelessness
was prevented or
relieved

Of which, main specific
reasons homelessness
prevented and client
was able to remain in
own home - with
numbers

Resolving housing
benefit problems (28);
Negotiation or legal
advocacy remaining in
private rented
accommodation (5);
Providing other
assistance remaining
private or social rented
accommodation (3)

Resolving housing
benefit problems (20);
Providing other
assistance remaining
private or social rented
accommodation (12);
Debt advice (6)

Providing other
assistance remaining
private or social rented
accommodation (16);
Resolving housing
benefit problems (12);
Conciliation including
home visits for family /
friend threatened
exclusions (9)

Providing other
assistance remaining
private or social rented
accommodation (29);
Conciliation including
home visits for family /
friend threatened
exclusions (27);
Resolving housing
benefit problems (14)

Of which, main reasons
homelessness was
assisted to find
alternative
accommodation - with
numbers

Offer of Local Authority
own accommodation or
nomination to a
Registered Provider
(186); Supported
accommodation (59);
Private rented sector
accommodation without
landlord incentive
scheme

(54)

Offer of Local Authority
own accommodation or
nomination to a
Registered Provider
(207); Private rented
sector accommodation
without landlord
incentive scheme

(69); Private rented
sector accommodation
with landlord incentive

Offer of Local Authority
own accommodation or
nomination to a
Registered Provider
(178); Private rented
sector accommodation
without landlord
incentive scheme

(61); Supported
accommodation (59)

Offer of Local Authority
own accommodation or
nomination to a
Registered Provider
(162); Private rented
sector accommodation
without landlord
incentive scheme

(69); Supported
accommodation (51)

13




0€ abed

scheme

(64)
Gedling
2013 2014 2015 2016
Homeless decisions 85 74 125 112
Acceptance decisions 53 60 83 88
Of acceptance Violence: Violent Loss of rented or tied Loss of rented or tied Loss of rented or tied
decisions, main breakdown of accommodation: accommodation: accommodation:

reasons with numbers

relationship involving
associated persons
(12); Loss of rented or
tied accommodation:
Termination of assured
shorthold tenancy
(11);Parents no longer
willing or able to

Termination of assured
shorthold tenancy (16);
Violence: Violent
breakdown of
relationship involving
associated persons
(16); Non-violent
breakdown of

Termination of assured
shorthold tenancy (25);
Violence: Violent
breakdown of
relationship involving
associated persons
(19); Parents no longer
willing or able to

Termination of assured
shorthold tenancy (25);
Parents no longer
willing or able to
accommodate

(11); Violence: Violent
breakdown of
relationship involving

accommodate relationship with accommodate associated persons (8)
(8) partner (6) (13)
Of acceptance 16-24 (24) 16-24 (20) 16-24 (30) 16-24 (29)
decisions, age 25-44 (20) 25-44 (31) 25-44 (47) 25-44 (53)
breakdown with 45-59 (8) 45-59 (9) 45-59 (6) 45-59 (6)
numbers 64-74 (1)
Of acceptance 31 37 54 60
decisions, number with
children or pregnant
Of acceptance 23 27 24 26

decisions, number
placed in temporary
accommodation

14




T¢ obed

Number of cases
where homelessness
was prevented or
relieved

263

313

177

192

Of which, main specific
reasons homelessness
prevented and client
was able to remain in
own home - with
numbers

Negotiation or legal
advocacy remaining in
private rented
accommodation (9);
Mediation using
external or internal
trained family
mediators (9);
Providing other
assistance remaining
private or social rented
accommodation (7)

Providing other
assistance remaining
private or social rented
accommodation (18);
Negotiation or legal
advocacy remaining in
private rented
accommodation (13);
Mediation using
external or internal
trained family
mediators (4);
Resolving housing
benefit problems

(4)

Providing other
assistance remaining
private or social rented
accommodation (9);

Resolving rent or
service charge arrears
in the social or private
rented sector (7);
Mediation using
external or internal
trained family
mediators

(5); Negotiation or legal
advocacy remaining in
private rented
accommodation (5)

Providing other
assistance remaining
private or social rented
accommodation (7);
Negotiation or legal
advocacy remaining in
private rented
accommodation (5);
Conciliation including
home visits for family /
friend threatened
exclusions (4)

Of which, main reasons
homelessness was
assisted to find
alternative
accommodation - with
numbers

Offer of Local Authority
own accommodation or
nomination to a
Registered Provider
(84); Private rented
sector accommodation
without landlord
incentive scheme

(77); Supported

Offer of Local Authority
own accommodation or
nomination to a
Registered Provider
(134); Private rented
sector accommodation
without landlord
incentive scheme

(66); Supported

Offer of Local Authority
own accommodation or
nomination to a
Registered Provider
(60); Private rented
sector accommodation
without landlord
incentive scheme

(35); Supported

Offer of Local Authority
own accommodation or
nomination to a
Registered Provider
(62); Private rented
sector accommodation
without landlord
incentive scheme

(49); Supported

15




Z2€ abed

accommodation (19)

accommodation (20)

accommodation (22)

accommodation (21)

Rushcliffe

2013 2014 2015 2016
Homeless decisions 36 37 26 34
Acceptance decisions 21 17 17 21

Of acceptance
decisions, main
reasons with numbers

Parents no longer
willing or able to
accommodate (7);
Violence: Violent
breakdown of
relationship involving
partner (6); Loss of
rented or tied
accommodation:
Reasons other than
termination of assured
shorthold tenancy

3)

Parents no longer
willing or able to
accommodate (4)

Violence: Violent
breakdown of
relationship involving
partner (8); Parents no
longer willing or able to
accommodate (2); Non-
violent breakdown of
relationship with
partner (2); Loss of
rented or tied
accommodation:
Termination of assured
shorthold tenancy (2)

Harassment, threats or
intimidation: Other
forms of harassment
(4); Parents no longer
willing or able to
accommodate (4);
Violence: Violent
breakdown of
relationship involving
partner (4)

Of acceptance 16-24 (7) 16-24 (5) 16-24 (4) 16-24 (3)
decisions, age 25-44 (9) 25-44 (11) 25-44 (11) 25-44 (15)
breakdown with 45-59 (4) 45-59 (1) 45-59 (2) 45-59 (3)
numbers 65-74 (1)

Of acceptance 15 10 12 12
decisions, number with

children or pregnant

Of acceptance 16 14 18 15

decisions, number
placed in temporary

16




ec abed

accommodation

Number of cases
where homelessness
was prevented or
relieved

217

256

276

225

Of which, main specific
reasons homelessness
prevented and client
was able to remain in
own home - with
numbers

Resolving housing
benefit problems (5);
Providing other
assistance remaining
private or social rented
accommodation (5);
Resolving rent or
service charge arrears
in the social or private
rented sector (3)

Sanctuary scheme
measures for domestic
violence (9); Resolving
rent or service charge
arrears in the social or
private rented sector
(4); Providing other
assistance remaining
private or social rented
accommodation (4)

Resolving housing
benefit problems (10);

Conciliation including
home visits for family /
friend threatened
exclusions (8);
Providing other
assistance remaining
private or social rented
accommodation (6)

Resolving housing
benefit problems (9);

Conciliation including
home visits for family /
friend threatened
exclusions (7)

Of which, main reasons
homelessness was
assisted to find
alternative
accommodation - with
numbers

Offer of Local Authority
own accommodation or
nomination to a
Registered Provider
(107); Private rented
sector accommodation
without landlord
incentive scheme

(55); Supported
accommodation (23)

Offer of Local Authority
own accommodation or
nomination to a
Registered Provider
(161); Private rented
sector accommodation
without landlord
incentive scheme

(29); Supported
accommodation (28)

Offer of Local Authority
own accommodation or
nomination to a
Registered Provider
(125); Private rented
sector accommodation
without landlord
incentive scheme

(70); Supported
accommodation (31)

Offer of Local Authority
own accommodation or
nomination to a
Registered Provider
(108); Private rented
sector accommodation
without landlord
incentive scheme

(44); Supported
accommodation (33)

17




7€ obed

Rough Sleepers

The three Boroughs undertake a count of rough sleepers every year as a single night snapshot in partnership
with a range of local organisations. This data is submitted to the Department for Communities and Local
Government in order to provide a national overview of the extent of rough sleeping. Data for the three Boroughs
is as follows:

2013 2014 2015 2016
Broxtowe 0 0 0 1
Gedling 0 0 0 0
Rushcliffe 1 0 3 0
England 2,414 2,744 3,569 4,134

Whilst the snapshot rough sleeper survey provides a useful overview of the extent of homelessness on a given
night, the Nottinghamshire Homeless Watch survey provides a more comprehensive overview of the extent of
rough sleeping in the County. The last survey report is available at:
http://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/housing/HLG _finalHWreport2015.pdf

Private Rental Costs

Broxtowe — lower quartile rents and Local Housing Allowance (LHA)

Rents LHA (£ per month) Shortfall (£ per month)
1 October 2015 — 30
September 2016 (£ per
month)

Shared room 255 289.21 (-34.21)

18




G¢ abed

1 bedroom 395 393.90 1.10
2 bedrooms 475 469.13 5.87
3 bedrooms 550 521.26 28.74
4+ bedrooms 700 656.50 43.50

Gedling — lower quartile rents and Local Housing Allowance (LHA)

Rents LHA (£ per month) Shortfall (£ per month)
1 October 2015 - 30
September 2016 (£ per

month)
Shared room 282 289.21 (-7.21)
1 bedroom 395 393.90 1.10
2 bedrooms 475 469.13 5.87
3 bedrooms 550 521.26 28.74
4+ bedrooms 773 656.50 116.50

Rushcliffe — lower quartile rents and Local Housing Allowance (LHA)

Rents LHA (£ per month) Shortfall (£ per month)
1 October 2015 - 30
September 2016 (£ per

month)
Shared room 303 289.21 13.79
1 bedroom 400 393.90 6.10
2 bedrooms 525 469.13 55.87
3 bedrooms 635 521.26 113.74
4+ bedrooms 895 656.50 238.50

19




9¢ abed

Nottingham City (for comparison) — lower quartile rents and Local Housing Allowance (LHA)

Rents LHA (£ per month) Shortfall (£ per month)
1 October 2015 - 30
September 2016 (£ per

month)
Shared room 312 289.21 22.79
1 bedroom 425 393.90 31.10
2 bedrooms 475 469.13 5.87
3 bedrooms 516 521.26 (-5.26)
4+ bedrooms 600 656.50 (-56.50)

Source: Valuation Office Agency (VOA)

*Whilst LHA rates do not reflect exact geographical borders of the Borough Councils, the LHA rate which applies
to the majority of the Council boundary has been used.

An evaluation of lower quartile market rents identified shortfalls in LHA levels against lower quartile rents across
the South Nottinghamshire Boroughs, with the only property types falling within LHA levels being shared
properties in Broxtowe and Gedling. There are shortfalls in LHA levels for 1,2,3 and 4+ bed properties across
the South Nottinghamshire Boroughs, especially on larger properties, with the most extreme example being a
shortfall of £283.50 per month on 4 bed properties in Rushcliffe. This shortfall appears to be an emerging trend
in the South Nottinghamshire Boroughs. The disparity between LHA and average rents means that for people
on housing benefits, many properties, are unaffordable, resulting in people with least disposable income being in
poor quality, insecure accommodation.

20




)€ abed

Where we want to be: the Challenges, Opportunities and Priorities:

The Challenge in South Nottinghamshire

Within South Nottinghamshire, we wish to work in partnership to reduce homelessness and minimise the
negative impacts on our resident’s lives. In order to achieve this, we have consulted widely with our partners to
establish five key challenging but achievable objectives as stated below.

The objectives have been agreed in the context of current challenges and opportunities including relating to
welfare reform; reductions in wider support for people at risk of homelessness and an increasing need to focus
on prevention.

Priorities

The priorities within the strategy are based on the following principles:

Minimising demand
!

Reducing the extent of crisis presentations

l

Delivering effective services at the point of contact

l

Providing appropriate accommodation options

l

Moving people away from homelessness

21



g¢ abed

1. Minimising Demand

We will work on a strong multi agency basis to minimise the demand for homelessness services. We will deliver
interventions to ensure that households know where to access advice and support at the appropriate time that
assists them to avoid or deal with issues that could lead to homelessness. We will seek to work with partners to
engage with young people to provide a consistent message about the difficulties of leaving home at a young
age, the realities of housing choice, including affordability and the likelihood of needing to share accommodation.

Outcomes: How we will know we are there:

There will be a choice of homes and tenures which meet a range of housing needs including for people
with mental and physical health issues

There will be effective engagement with young people around homelessness and its consequences

There will be less homelessness

The impact of welfare reform will be mitigated through the early identification and provision of interventions
for affected households

To achieve this, we will:

Work in partnership across the three Boroughs and with other partners to educate people in the reality and
risks of being homeless

Monitor the impact of Welfare Reform to both households and the housing sector and seek to minimise
negative consequences

Ensure good quality information and advice is available to prevent homelessness

Ensure that our Allocations Schemes are easy to use and appropriately prioritise people in housing need
Continue to work effectively and in a collaborative way across all three Boroughs and with other partners
relating to homelessness prevention

22



6E abed

e Work with partners to promote independent living skills and prevent relationship breakdown

¢ We will work with landlords across tenures to enable them to accommodate people in housing need,
including those with support needs including mental and physical health issues

e We will seek housing and support solutions for people with specific needs and ensure there is equality of
access

2. Reduce Crisis Presentations

Agencies across South Nottinghamshire have opportunities to reduce housing crisis amongst their core client
groups. This can be achieved by working in a more joined up way to identify those households at high risk of
homelessness by making sure agencies can recognise the indicators of housing stress and be able to act
appropriately to prevent homelessness. Every opportunity should be taken as early as possible to prevent
homelessness.

Outcomes: How we will know we are there

There will be a more straightforward and transparent system to access affordable homes of all types
There will be a reduction of households presenting as 'homeless tonight'

there will be no 16 - 17 year olds placed into Bed and Breakfast accommodation

There will be fewer families placed in to emergency accommodation

To achieve this, we will:

e Seek to offer consistent advice and assist at the earliest opportunity
e Ensure Homelessness Services are approachable and easy to access
e Advise and enable mediation within families to facilitate a return home to allow for a planned move rather
than one in crisis, where appropriate
23



oY abed

Utilise evidence to assess and seek to minimise future housing issues

3. Deliver Effective Services at the Point of Contact

We will ensure that households who approach services across South Nottinghamshire will be able to access
effective advice and assistance to prevent homelessness, either by enabling them to remain where they are or
by facilitating a move into more appropriate accommodation.

Homeless households will be able to access pro-active homelessness prevention services, an assessment of
need and a range of advice and options that will enable access to short stay or longer stay accommodation.
These services will also provide access to other services promoting education, training and employment
opportunities, health services, life-skills, debt and financial advice benefits advice. These will strengthen people’s
chances of resolving their housing problems.

Outcomes: How we will know we are there

There are a range of housing pathways in place that enable people to resolve their housing difficulties
There will be a reduction in the numbers of households entering temporary accommodation

There will be effective services available by partners to assist people with a range of physical and mental
health issues

There is improvement in the health of homeless households and a reduction in the numbers accessing
Accident & Emergency and other more acute services

There will be effective and joined up services available for people with mental health issues who are
discharged from hospital or care

24



T obed

To achieve this we will:

Seek to ensure that services are approachable

We will take a proactive preventative approach to make every contact matter and easy to access
Engage with partners to ensure that services are effective and joined up

Undertake a full assessment of need

Provide housing advice, facilitating access to short and longer stay accommodation and support
Provide clear and meaningful housing and support pathways

Work with a range of partners to provide access to other services that promote health and wellbeing,
employment, education and training opportunities

4. Provide Appropriate Accommodation Options

It is crucial that partners are able to facilitate access to appropriate accommodation to prevent and resolve
homelessness in the short, medium and long term. To effectively achieve this, we need to:

Facilitate access to the Private Rented Sector for all groups. Landlords should feel confident that
tenancies are sustainable

Ensure that allocations of housing in the social sector are needs led through the Homesearch Choice
Based Lettings system

Ensure that there are appropriate pathways into supported housing and also appropriate pathways into
move on accommodation where this is appropriate.

Outcomes: How we will know we are there

There will be a clear pathway in place to enable people to progress to secure and sustainable
accommodation

25



2 obed

There will be fewer failed tenancies

There will be effective engagement with the Private Rented Sector
There will be less incidences of homelessness

There will be fewer households in temporary accommodation

To achieve this we will:

Seek to ensure that people have access to appropriate accommodation

Continue to work effectively across the three Boroughs in the provision of temporary accommodation
Ensure that a range of housing options are available and are used effectively

Work with partners to support people to develop their independent living skills where appropriate
Effectively engage with partners, including County Council, to further develop youth homelessness
services

e Develop and strengthen partnerships with a range of housing providers and landlords, particularly the
Private Rented Sector to build upon the range of housing and support options available to residents

5. Move People Away from Homelessness

It is essential that we seek to reduce incidences of repeat homelessness through enabling a range of options
that will assist people in accessing education, training, employment or other appropriate support. This will assist
people to move away from homelessness.

Outcomes: How we will know we are there

e Appropriate support will be in place to enable people to improve and maintain their independence
e There will be fewer incidences of repeat homelessness

26



oy obed

e Opportunities will be taken to engage with partners to maximise projects relating to work and
apprenticeships
e More homeless people will access education, training and employment opportunities

To achieve this we will:

Seek to ensure people have access to appropriate housing and support

Ensure that there are sufficient move on options from supported accommodation

Seek to ensure that there is accessible support if tenancies start to fail

Ensure there are clear links to health promotion, education, training and employment opportunities

Delivering the Strateqgy

The South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy has been developed through the South Nottinghamshire
Inter Agency Homelessness Forum, bringing together a wide range of statutory and voluntary agencies involved
in preventing homelessness and providing services to homeless people. The action plan will be progressed,
reviewed and updated by the Forum annually to measure progress through the South Nottinghamshire Inter
Agency Homelessness Forum, which meets quarterly. The action plan will also take account of changes in
Government policy and at a County level.

Delivery against the plan will be reported to Members in each of the three Councils and an annual update will be

available on each Council website. The overall Homelessness Strategy action plan will be developed in
partnership with partner organisations and will be in line with the priorities outlined above.

27



South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strateqy Action Plan 2016-17

The South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy Action Plan is a live document and is updated at least
annually through the South Nottinghamshire Inter-Agency Homelessness Forum to reflect changes in national
and local priorities and resources.

vt abed

What we will do How we will do it By when Lead organisations
Work in partnership across Continue to work with partners such as On-going Broxtowe Youth Homelessness
the three Boroughs and with | Broxtowe Youth Homelessness_ to Broxtowe, Gedling and
other partners to educate develop the peer support offer in local Rushcliffe Borough Councils
people in the reality and risks | schools to educate school children in the
of being homeless realities of the housing market
Monitor the impact of Welfare | Work with partners such as the On-going Registered Providers
Reform to both households Department of Work and Pensions;
and the housing sector and Registered Providers and with our Eepa_rtment of Work and
L : . : { : ensions
seek to minimise negative Housing Benefit Teams to identify and .
consequences minimise impacts of welfare reform Broxtowe, Gedling and
Rushcliffe Borough Councils

Ensure good quality Attend monthly prison housing surgeries | On-going Broxtowe, Gedling and
information and advice is to give housing options advice to prison Rushcliffe Borough Councils
available to prevent leavers
homelessness Explore common information and advice

through leaflets and on the internetona | December

range of housing issues across South 2017

Nottinghamshire

28




Gy abed

Ensure that our Allocations Upgrade the Abritas Enhanced Housing | March 2018 | Broxtowe, Gedling and
Schemes are easy to use Options module to enable a more Rushcliffe Borough Councils
and appropriately prioritise effective allocations system and
people in housing need identification of wider housing options
Continue to work effectively | Continue to utilise the South On-going South Nottinghamshire Inter
and in a collaborative way Nottinghamshire Inter Agency Agency Homelessness
across all three Boroughs Homelessness Forum to share best members
and with other partners practice and scope responses to
relating to homelessness emerging policy changes such as the
prevention Homelessness Reduction Bill
Work with partners to Continue to work through agencies such | On-going Broxtowe Youth Homelessness
promote independent living as Broxtowe Youth Homelessness to Broxtowe, Gedling and
skills and prevent relationship | support tenancy training and mediation Rushcliffé Borough Councils
breakdown
Work with landlords across Fully engage with landlord representative | On-going Private Landlords
tenures to enable them to organisations including the National . ;
accommodate people in Landlords Association (NLA); Decent and Registered Provider partners
housing need, including Safe Homes (DASH) and East Midlands EMPO; DASH; NLA
those with support needs Property Owners (EMPO) to maximise Broxtowe, Gedling and
including mental and physical | opportunities to utilise accommodation for Rushcliffe Borough Councils
health issues people in housing need in the Private

Rented Sector

Annually

Hold at least one major private landlord
event covering South Nottinghamshire
every 12 months

29




o abed

Continue to fully engage with Registered | On-going

Provider partners to maximise

accommodation for people in housing

need
Seek housing and support Fully engage with County colleagues On-going Nottinghamshire County
solutions for people with regarding understanding and meeting the Council
specific needs and ensure housing and support needs of clients with Broxtowe, Gedling and
there is equality of access specific needs Rushcliffe Borough Councils
Seek to offer consistent Continue to work through the South On-going South Nottinghamshire Inter
advice and assist at the Nottinghamshire Inter Agency Agency Homelessness
earliest opportunity Homelessness forum to provide effective members

and consistent homelessness services

Deliver upgrade the Arbritas Choice

Based Lettings system which will provide | December

and enhanced housing options offer 2017
Ensure Homelessness Explore the introduction of satisfaction December Broxtowe, Gedling and
Services are approachable monitoring of homelessness services. 2017 Rushcliffe Borough Councils
and easy to access

Pilot a mystery shopping exercise of December

homelessness services in one Borough 2017
Utilise evidence to assess Continue to work in partnership to On-going Broxtowe, Gedling and

and seek to minimise future
housing issues

understand the key issues around
homelessness in the South of the County,
including benchmarking homelessness

Rushcliffe Borough Councils

30




/v obed

data and sharing best practice at the
South Nottinghamshire Inter Agency
Homelessness Forum

Commission a study across South
Nottinghamshire to better understand the
gaps in the provision of housing and
support for 19-35 year olds and to enable
an assessment of the implications for
welfare reform on this group

Maximise opportunities through required
changes in P1E homelessness data
collection to improve data collection

September
2017

On-going

Take a proactive preventative
approach to make every
contact matter and easy to
access

Upgrade the Arbritas choice based
lettings system to provide an enhanced
housing options service in order to
develop the prevention offer

March 2018

Broxtowe, Gedling and
Rushcliffe Borough Councils

Engage with partners to
ensure that services are
effective and joined up

Where possible, develop joint working
protocols to ensure a consistently high
quality of homelessness services across
South Nottinghamshire

Develop service standards across the
three Boroughs to ensure that customers
are clear on the level of service they can
expect

September
2017

Broxtowe, Gedling and
Rushcliffe Borough Councils

31




gy abed

Provide clear and meaningful
housing and support

Develop full homelessness procedure
guides for front line homelessness staff to

September
2017

Broxtowe, Gedling and
Rushcliffe Borough Councils

pathways ensure a consistent provision of services
Work with a range of partners | Through the South Nottinghamshire Inter | On-going Broxtowe, Gedling and
to provide access to other Agency Homelessness Forum, explore Rushcliffe Borough Councils
services that promote health | every opportunity to work with partners to South Nottinghamshire Inter
and wellbeing, employment, | increase resilience to homelessness by Agency Homelessness Forum
education and training supporting clients to access health, mabers
opportunities training and employment services
Seek to ensure that people Work with partners to identify and meet On-going Broxtowe, Gedling and
have access to appropriate specialist housing provision needs Rushcliffe Borough Councils
accommodation including relating to mental health, South Nottinghamshire Inter
learning disabilities, drug and alcohol Agency Homelessness Forum
usage, ex-offenders, physical disability members and other partners
as appropriate
Continue to work effectively | Improve cold weather emergency provision in | On-going Broxtowe, Gedling and
across the three Boroughs in | all 3 boroughs by investigating arrangements Rushcliffe Borough Councils
the provision of temporary with the faith sector and use of Temporary
accommodation Accommodation voids
Provide a consistent inspection process for On-going
B&B accommodation to ensure good quality
provision
Continuing to work across the three On-going

authorities in the provision of temporary

32




61 obed

accommodation to minimise Bed and
Breakfast usage

Seek to improve the support | Work closely with partners across the County | On-going All Authorities in
for rough sleepers (including City) to improve the support offered Nottinghamshire
to rough sleepers, including through providing ]
improved access to health care. Framework Housing and other
partners as required
Effectively engage with Continue to engage with the Youth On-going Nottinghamshire County
partners, including County Homelessness Forum and County Council
Coutr;]crlll, to flurther develop Council col(lje?.gues ’tfot;}mpjjem(tar\}t/thﬁ Broxtowe, Gedling and
youth homelessness services | recommendations of the Joint Wor Rushcliffe Borough Councils
Protocol to identify housing needs and
opportunities to meet need South Nottinghamshire Inter
Agency Homelessness Forum
members and other partners
as appropriate
Seek to maximise funding to | Engage with voluntary sector partners to | On-going Nottinghamshire County
secure additional supported | identify suitable properties and funding for Council
accc()jmmogatloqdwhereda supported accommodation Broxtowe, Gedling and
need can be evidence Rushcliffe Borough Councils
South Nottinghamshire Inter
Agency Homelessness Forum
members and other partners
as appropriate
Develop and strengthen Maximise opportunities to provide support | On-going Broxtowe, Gedling and

partnerships with a range of
housing providers and

to unlock opportunities in the Private
Rented Sector where appropriate

Rushcliffe Borough Councils
South Nottinghamshire Inter

33




0G abed

landlords, particularly the
Private Rented Sector to

Seek to identify opportunities to

Agency Homelessness Forum
members

build upon the range of reconfigure lower demand properties On-going . .
. . ) Registered Providers
housing and support options | where appropriate to meet needs _
available to residents Private Landlords
County Council
Other partners as appropriate
Seek to ensure people have | Reduce repeat homelessness by On-going Broxtowe, Gedling and
access to appropriate providing appropriate support Rushcliffe Borough Councils
housing and support
Explore opportunities to develop floating
support services
Ensure that there are Ensure that allocations policies are On-going Broxtowe, Gedling and
sufficient move on options regularly reviewed to ensure that Rushcliffe Borough Councils
from supported provision of move on opportunities are
accommodation maximised as appropriate
On-going

Work with the Private Rented Sector to
maximise opportunities for good quality
move on accommodation

34




Appendix 2

Gedling #

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy
Date: 6 April 2017
Author: Joint report of the Service Managers for Economic Growth and

Regeneration and Revenues and Welfare Support
Wards Affected
All
Purpose

The Council is legally required to publish a homelessness strategy at least every
five years. This report sets out to update Members on the development of the
South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy 2017-2021 and provides an
opportunity for input following wider consultation and prior to final drafting.

It is proposed that a presentation is made to Cabinet in the Autumn with the final
draft.

Key Decision

Yes

Background

1.1 The three Boroughs of Broxtowe, Gedling and Rushcliffe have strategic
responsibility for meeting our legislative requirements under the
Homelessness Act 2002.

1.2 Section 1(4) of the Homelessness Act 2002 requires Local Authorities
to publish a new homelessness strategy within a period of 5 years
beginning with the day on which their last homelessness strategy was
published.

1.3 This is the second joint homelessness strategy for the three Boroughs.

The last joint homelessness strategy was published in 2013. The three
Councils have utilised the joint homelessness strategy and action plan
to promote and focus effective partnership working across the three
areas including multi agency working through the South

Page 51



1.4

Nottinghamshire Inter Agency Homelessness Forum, the body which
monitors progress on the action plan.

The Homelessness Strategy sets out a pro-active approach to
preventing homelessness, working in partnership with neighbouring
Councils and other key partners including those with a skills, education
and training remit to ensure a holistic approach. This is at a time of
increasing pressure on homelessness services brought about by a
number of factors including welfare reform, a reduction in the number
and range of support services provided by partner agencies and
pressures on the continued supply of social rented affordable housing.
It is also at a time of significant change in the way that homelessness
services will be delivered, as shown in the Homelessness Reduction
Bill.

The Strategy builds on the achievements of the previous
Homelessness Strategy and sets out a framework for continued
improvements.

Key achievements include:

e Delivering over 150 affordable homes though successful
partnerships since 2013 in the Borough

e Successfully bidding for funding to commission research into the
accommodation and support needs of 19-35 year olds to identify
current gaps, further challenges through welfare reform and
identify opportunities to minimise negative impacts

e As part of a Nottinghamshire-wide consortium, successfully
bidding for £370,000 of funding over 2 years to provide a county-
wide rough sleeper service and extend street outreach services
across Nottinghamshire

e Achieving over 1,000 homelessness preventions since 2013 in the
Borough

e Successful provision and support of accommodation for Syrian
Refugees in the Borough as part of the Syrian Vulnerable Person’s
Resettlement Programme and Vulnerable Children’s Relocation
Programme

e Successfully delivering Private Landlords partnership events,
attended by over 60 landlords and letting agents

Working with Broxtowe Youth Homelessness to deliver educational
sessions to year 10 and 11 students in South Nottinghamshire to

Page 52



2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

213

raise awareness, challenge stereotypes and equip young people
with the knowledge to make informed housing choices and access
support

e Contributing to the development of the County-wide Housing &
Health Commissioning Group and the development of the Health
and Wellbeing Plan, including identification of best practice pilot
schemes

Proposal

The strategy adopts a structured approach and broadly follows the
themes identified in the previous strategy which reflect the three primary
objectives identified in the Homelessness Act 2002:

e Prevention of homelessness by enabling people to access
adequate and appropriate housing advice

e Help at the point of homelessness to prevent rough sleeping

e Enabling the move away from homelessness, including support to
live in new move-on accommodation.

The strategy expands on the primary objectives in the areas where
we need to do more to prevent and tackle homelessness.

An action plan has been developed around the five priority areas
identified below and will be monitored and updated through the
South Nottinghamshire Inter Agency Homelessness Forum to
reflect emerging priorities, challenges and opportunities, including
further welfare reform measures, and the implementation of the
Homeless Reduction Bill.

Minimising demand — to work with partners to reduce the demand for
homelessness services through delivering interventions to ensure that
households know where to access advice and support at the appropriate
time that assists them to avoid or deal with issues that could lead to
homelessness. This will include further engagement with young people on
the realities of housing choice.

Reducing the extent of crisis presentations — working in a more joined
up way to identify those households at high risk of homelessness by
making sure agencies can recognise the indicators of housing stress and
be able to act appropriately to prevent homelessness.

Delivering effective services at the point of contact — ensuring that
households who approach services across South Nottinghamshire will be

Page 53



214

2.1.5

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

able to access effective advice and assistance to prevent homelessness,
either by enabling them to remain where they are or by facilitating a move
into more appropriate accommodation. These services will also provide
access to other services promoting education, training and employment
opportunities, health services, life-skills and benefits advice. These will
strengthen people’s chances of resolving their housing problems.

Providing appropriate accommodation options — ensuring that
partners are able to facilitate access to appropriate accommodation to
prevent and resolve homelessness in the short, medium and long term,
including the Private Rented Sector and that there are appropriate
pathways into housing with support and move on accommodation where
appropriate.

Moving people away from homelessness - reducing incidences of
repeat homelessness through enabling a range of options that will assist
people in accessing education, training, employment or other appropriate
support. This will assist people to move away from homelessness.

The Strategy has been developed through the South Nottinghamshire
Inter Agency Homelessness Forum, which includes representatives from
all three Boroughs; County Council and a number of partner organisations
with a homelessness remit. The strategy has undergone extensive
consultation over a 12 week period (11 November 2016 — 6 February
2017) and provided opportunities for partners to contribute to the
development of the strategy. Consultees included neighbouring Councils;
County Council; Social Landlords; Nottinghamshire Public Health and
third sector organisations dealing with homeless clients. Responses
were received from a wide range of partner organisations including
Nottinghamshire County Council; the Probation Service; Homelessness
Charities; other Councils; local colleges; the NHS and private landlord
representatives. A summary of responses is available as appendix 2.

Overall, the responses confirmed that the priorities contained within the
draft strategy were appropriate. Significantly, responses very much
confirmed the need to ensure appropriate homelessness prevention
services are in place and that opportunities to bolster access to wider
support through partners, including relating to training opportunities and
health, are maximised.

The strategy also takes account of data trends across the South
Nottinghamshire area relating to homelessness.

The Strategy strongly focuses efforts on preventing homelessness. This
is reflective of the emerging Government priorities and statutory
obligations for local authorities contained in the Homelessness Reduction
Bill which is currently being considered in the House of Lords. The Bill

Page 54



2.6

2.7

seeks to refocus English local authorities on efforts to prevent
homelessness. As such, the Government propose that additional
resources will be made available to housing authorities to comply with the
new statutory requirements.

The progress of the Bill will be monitored in order to ensure that the
homelessness strategy and delivery plan fully reflects new requirements
and maximises opportunities to bolster efforts to prevent homelessness.

Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) — An Equalities Impact Assessment
will be undertaken prior to the final strategy being published.

Alternative Options

3.1

3.2

It is a legal requirement to publish a new homelessness strategy at least
every 5 years, therefore, in order to comply with legal requirements, the
strategy must be published by the end of the 2017 calendar year.

Gedling Borough Council could produce a stand-alone Homelessness
Strategy. However, we work closely with Broxtowe and Rushcliffe
Borough Councils in many aspects of housing and are able to pool
resources; many statutory and voluntary sector agencies work across the
area so they only need a single channel of engagement rather than three
separate relationships and Nottinghamshire County Council treats the
three boroughs as a single area for the purposes of commissioning
housing related support services. The strategy could be produced on an
individual authority basis, however, this would reduce the opportunities for
joint working across the three authorities and also have capacity
implications

Financial Implications

4.1 Delivery of the annual Action Plan will be contained within existing
approved budgets. Any additional plans/projects will be delivered subject
to securing budget approval and will identify external funding streams as
appropriate.

Appendices

5.1 South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy and Action Plan

5.2  South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy consultation responses

Page 55



Background Papers

6.1 South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy 2013-2017

Recommendation(s)

To note progress on the South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy and
comment as appropriate. Comments will be used to inform the final
homelessness strategy document.

That the strategy is presented again to Cabinet later in the year in its final format

so seek approval to publish once the implications of the Homelessness
Reduction Bill are fully known

Reasons for Recommendations

The South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy seeks to:

Raise awareness among Members, officers, partners and the public about the
homelessness challenges facing the Borough and wider South Nottinghamshire
area and the Council’s actions in response.

Focus resources on priorities that make a practical difference with a strong focus
on preventing homelessness.

Production of a Homelessness Strategy at least every 5 years is a statutory
requirement.

To accord with the Council’s Corporate Plan.

Page 56



)G abed

Appendix 3

Summary of responses to the homelessness strategy consultation

20 responses received. Of these, 18 agreed that the overall priorities are appropriate; 1 disagreed; 1 did not respond

Overall priorities
If you disagree, what
should the priorities be?

Think minimising demand should be called "prevention of homelessness”. Minimising demand suggests prevention of demand
by those homeless.

Within priorities 1,3 and 4 there needs to be arrangements for people with NRPF who require urgent life saving treatment

(for example for active TB as set out in the NICE guidance).

Should articulate addressing the causes of homelessness in the priorities: minimising demand is an insufficient description.

Response

It is encouraging that the overwhelming majority of respondents agreed with the overall approach of the strategy,
therefore the priorities will remain as per the draft.

With regard to the very specific mention of people with No Recourse to Public Funds, whilst lower tier Authorities are
very restricted to the extent of support that can be given to people with NRPF, we will continue to work with County
colleagues and colleagues in charitable organisations to provide support where required. The strategy makes reference
to working with partners and this will be included within this broader context.

MINIMISING DEMAND | Pg 24 of the Strategy
Does the priority give a 18 agreed
reasonable overview of Comments

what we need to do? If
not, what is missing?

Need to work with partners in the prevention of mental and physical health problems (Making Every Contact Count approach)
Keeping people well will reduce the need for housing support.

Work with partners to intervene with families where behaviour (may be around budgeting or ASB or may be the behaviour of
others) is likely to lead to homelessness.

Identifying people with specific health needs where homelessness is not an option. Patients with pulmonary tuberculosis
need direct access to accommodation so that their treatment can be maintained and monitored to ensure treatment
completion.

This not only protects the individual but reduces the risk of transmission of the disease within the public and other vulnerable
groups. This accommodation would be need to be provided for 6 months minimum, the standard treatment course for TB.
However, for cases of multi drug resistance this could be up to two years

We should also ensure that housing provision is health promoting, not just appropriate for specific mental and physical health
needs.

More content on how you will work with landlords would be helpful, particularly around tenant needs.

Yes, but in addition:




gG abed

e no mention of debt and the impact debt has on homelessness

e no mention of housing/welfare benefits advice and prevention/reduction of homelessness

e how to ensure funding for debt management/financial capability/housing and welfare benefits advice provision

e how will you ensure there is a continuing, robust multi agency approach when many third sector agencies are faced
with funding issues

Response

The strategy recognises the importance of providing support and linkages relating to both physical and mental health and
wellbeing — this has been further strengthened within the strategy as a result of consultation

The specific comments relating to tuberculosis — engagement has commenced with County public health to better
understand the issues and requirements for action which will be reflected as part of broader work

The need to work effectively with private landlords is acknowledged and has been strengthened in the Strategy as a result
of consultation.

What have been the main
achievements relating to
this priority in South
Nottinghamshire since the
last Homelessness Strategy
was published in 20137

The opening of Framework's Transition South hostel for young people on Trent Boulevard

Demand for supportive living accommodation has increased alongside a reduction in available supportive accommodation
Some additional social housing for single people is available.

Regular Forum meeting

Response

Noted

What do you see as the
main challenges or
opportunities relating to
this priority over the next 5
years?

Getting preventative support to the households that need this support with minimal funding for agencies to provide this
provision.

The Public Space Protection Order in Rushcliffe as homeless people may be fined for sleeping rough. Not having enough
affordable housing

The main challenge I see over the next 5 years is the increasing demand for 1 bed properties and the increasing gap between
housing benefit rates and private rental rates for such properties.

Resource in terms of people and funds

Reduction in financial allocation across all partnerships with consequence being that financial allocation is for one year only
with a reduction in the next year. Opportunity for partners to work together

Lack of adequate funding. Insufficient resources in staff and housing

Rising private rents or landlords seeking to cash in on rising house prices. Lack of social housing & need to replace stock sold
due to right to buy. Payment of Housing Benefit to claimant now being more widely used are challenges. Opportunities could
be the conversion of 'business' accommodation eg pubs into smaller residential units, some of which could be supported.
Making co-ownership (part rental part purchase) a possibility for first time buyers more widely available - this might release
some of the rental stock.




6G abed

Educating young people that you cant just get a place to live because yo fall out with your parents

Housing is the greater challenge as private renting in this area is prohibitive for a lot of people.

Where patients have no recourse to public funds and have health issues such as pulmonary Tuberculosis. Individuals with

TB need rapid access to housing even if they have no recourse to public funds see NICE TB Pathway Underserved Groups
http://pathways.nice.org.uk/pathways/tuberculosis And the Care Act ... The Care Act 2014 requires local authorities to
promote an adult's wellbeing in each decision that it makes, and this must include considering the adult’s social and economic
wellbeing, suitability of living accommodation and physical and mental health and emotional wellbeing.

The challenge that I am aware of relates to homeless single men who have NRPF and require a accommodation to enable
treatment for active TB. The scenarios that have emerged over the past 5 years have meant that people have not been able to
be discharged from hospital or treatment has been stopped mid way through a 6 to 12 month treatment regime. The issues in
these scenarios relate to meeting NICE guidance to support access to appropriate live saving treatment, prevent delays in
hospital discharge and reduce the personal impact of failed treatment and the global impact of failed treatment in relation to
the rise in antibiotic resistant TB and Antimicrobial Resistance (AMR)

Supply of affordable rental properties along with a workable and reactive care system to quickly deal and manage tenant
problems. You know what you would like to achieve and you now have the opportunity to lay the foundations to ensure the
infrastructure is put into place effectively.

Gaining interest from PRS landlords could be a challenge.

Funding streams for LA’s and the third sector will continue to be under threat risking a robust multi agency approach.

On the other hand there are potential opportunities for cross sector partnerships to maximise funding opportunities —

whilst also ensuring services are not duplicated.

For example debt and benefits advice is specialist work and agencies who can carry out financial capability, regulated by the FCA to do
DROs and bankruptcies and who can also provide benefits advice including tribunal work (for example CABx) could have a County wide
fund for this covering the County and the City. We would then take referrals from other agencies to do this work.

Particularly important would be to have links with housing associations across the County to prevent evictions. If benefits stop it
sometimes takes weeks and intensive work to get them re-started. For vulnerable people they need intensive advocacy work to achieve
this and in the meantime rent and council tax arrears will be accumulating — often resulting in unnecessary eviction processes starting and
even evictions taking place which in the long term costs statutory agencies more money.

Response

The comments above are supportive of the priorities within the Strategy. Where appropriate, the strategy has been
bolstered to reflect the comments made. With regard to people with NRPF, as previously stated, discussions have
commenced tith County colleagues around what additional mechanisms can be put in place to support the cl case of
people in the County with NRPF with Tubercolosis annually.

What should be the key

Funding provision identified for a generic floating support provision.




09 abed

actions to enable this
priority to be taken
forward over the next 5
years and how do you
think you/ your
organisation can help to
take the action forward?

Put in a strategy to ensure homeless people found sleeping rough are helped to find accommodation not fined Be proactive in
building affordable homes
Assurances and public awareness raising in understanding the work and depth of the STP.
Early identification and provision of interventions for affected households in order to prevent homelessness
The main actions are to prevent people from becoming homeless. Talks to teenagers. More social liaisons to spot and stop
people leaving home.
Families at risk of homelessness or inappropriately accommodated due to ASB or poor budgeting skills could be referred to
Family Service.
notice boards/roadshows
Providing properties in brown field sites that can be converted to minimal accommodation facilities.
I would like to discuss the inclusion in the housing criteria to enable a rapid response to people who have a diagnosis of active
TB who have No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF).
A full understanding on what each agency can deliver so expectations are realised. My organisation would like to have a
robust charter outlining what measures would come into play to support a landlord who finds themselves with a non compliant
tenant.
1. Offer a lease on PRS properties to landlords. 2. Treat a Section 21 Notice as a trigger for homelessness.
3. Provide dedicated support to landlords with regards to tenant issues.
e debt and the impact debt has on homelessness should be included in strategic and operational plans
e homelessness prevention through high quality housing advice and support for people in private and public sector housing should
be maintained and increased across the county — this is essential from a fiscal cost reduction but also in the reduction/
prevention of the emotional/physical/mental impact on families and individuals
e access to LA services has reduced drastically — the third sector is bridging that gap but can only do so with continued funding

CA have a strong track record of delivering debt advice across the region.
CA in Broxtowe have strong track record of delivering housing advice and support

Response

Agreed, these comments are reflected within the Homelessness Straategy priorities and delivery plan

Which are the key
organisations
organisations/ contacts
that are essential to
driving this priority
forward?

Commissioners of services.

Borough and county councils, the police, housing associations, developers, homelessness charities

Social services CCG Hospitals Police Drug serv Alcohol County and borough authorities

Mental Health teams, social housing providers, Framework and other support service providers, private landlords
Collaborative / partnership working via the STP

District Councils, Public Health, ASCH, mental and physical health CCG commissioners and providers, Voluntary Sector,
Fire in their role as Improving Wellbeing

Local Authorities.




T9 abed

District Staff to make referrals

Laura.archer@centralnottingham.ac.uk

As listed above

In relation to the scenarios described please contact Dr Jonathan Gribbin Consultant Public Health and Sally Handley Senior
Public Health Manager based at County Hall

Not qualified to answer this question very well

Council

e (Citizens Advice

e Nottinghamshire County Council

e  Borough Councils (ie Broxtowe)

e  Other voluntary agencies such as Framework/Hope Nottingham/

e  Other statutory agencies such as the Fire Service / Police /Social Services /NHS in making referrals into services for vulnerable
clients. Even GPs are well placed to see if someone is struggling with other issues affecting their mental health such as
debt/housing/benefits. They need to know where to refer for specialist help.

Response

Noted. Whilst there is already strong partner engagement, the above comments help to ensure we are able to identify
possible gaps in engagement. Where there are gaps, partners will be contacted to increase engagement

Do you have any other
comments specifically
relating to this priority?

Need to think about how we overcome the issue of homeless people not being able to register ( and thus access primary
care/prevention ) with general practitioners.
My key message is all about providing a level of "Wrap around care" to quickly and efficiently deal with tenant problems when
they occur.
e Avoid duplication of services to make any relevant funding more targeted and effective.
e Map out what help is out there not only for general help (think this has already been done — ie Notts help yourself etc) but for
e specialist help. Signposting often doesn’t work with vulnerable clients — they need specific referrals — date/time and in a location
they can reach. For example Eastwood people would find it difficult to access services in the City or even in Beeston which is
their own borough — it is 2 bus rides away.

Response Noted and will be considered as part of action plan updates
REDUCE CRISIS Pg 26 of the Strategy
PRESENTATIONS

Does the priority give a
reasonable overview of

Need to facilitate a return home that is safe, i.e. in cases domestic violence and/or abuse. Also, the focus is on families, need to
extend the approach to include single homelessness if you are going to prevent crisis presentations.




29 abed

what we need to do? If
not, what is missing?

Looks fine - it would be good if a reduction in B&B for all groups could be a target, the accommodation on offer is usually
poor and would not be acceptable within the 'normal’ B&B market.
with TB patients there will always be crisis presentations. As a nurse working with these patients I need to have direct access to
housing in crisis situations to place a patient in suitable accommodation see NICE TB Pathway Underserved Groups
ttp://pathways.nice.org.uk/pathways/tuberculosis And the Care Act ... The Care Act 2014 requires local authorities to
promote an adult's wellbeing in each decision that it makes, and this must include considering the adult’s social and economic
wellbeing, suitability of living accommodation and physical and mental health and emotional wellbeing.
Again

e no mention of debt and the impact debt has on homelessness

e no mention of housing/welfare benefits advice and prevention/reduction of homelessness

e how to ensure funding for debt management/financial capability/housing and welfare benefits advice provision

e how will you ensure there is a continuing, robust multi agency approach when many third sector agencies are faced with

funding issues

Response

Response on TB previously stated
The Strategy now includes stronger reference to debt and financial advice
Within the Strategy the aim of reducing and ultimately ending the use of B&B accommodation is stated

What have been the main
achievements relating to
this priority in South
Nottinghamshire since the
last Homelessness Strategy
was published in 20137

Development of young persons supported housing provision in the 3 boroughs.
Reduction in 16-17 year olds in B&B
Regular Forum meeting

Response

Noted

What do you see as the
main challenges or
opportunities relating to
this priority over the next 5
years?

The young persons service meeting demand, there is a high need for this service due to the number of young people coming
out of Looked After Services requiring housing.

Main challenge - Putting in place the straightforward and transparent system to access affordable homes of all types

Again financial allocation

Main challenge is the change to welfare benefits and the growing sense that many people in work are struggling to keep
within the budget that they have available.

Impact of Welfare Reform

Funding streams for LA’s and the third sector will continue to be under threat risking a robust multi agency approach.

On the other hand there are potential opportunities for cross sector partnerships to maximise funding opportunities




g abed

Response

Noted. The challenges stated above are reflected within the Strategy

What should be the key
actions to enable this
priority to be taken
forward over the next 5
years and how do you
think you/ your
organisation can help to
take the action forward?

Ensure high quality service provision and ensure levels of throughput within the service contract are been met.
Partnership approach
Where families are under financial and housing stress this will impact on family - Family Service may be able to help here.
Provision of good short term supported accommodation. Minimum standards for B&B
debt and the impact debt has on homelessness should be included in strategic and operational plans
homelessness prevention through high quality housing advice and support for people in private and public sector housing should be
maintained and increased across the county — this is essential from a fiscal cost reduction but also in the reduction/ prevention of the
emotional/physical/mental impact on families and individuals
areas like Eastwood have high deprivation and low investment
access to LA services has reduced drastically — the third sector is bridging that gap but can only do so with continued funding
CA (Citizens Advice) have a strong track record of delivering debt advice across the region.
CA in Broxtowe have strong track record of delivering housing advice and support

Response

Noted. The actions stated above are reflected within the Strategy

Which are the key
organisations
organisations/ contacts
that are essential to
driving this priority
forward?

Family Service
District Councils
Referral from housing staff

Citizens Advice

Nottinghamshire County Council

Borough Councils (ie Broxtowe)

Other voluntary agencies such as Framework/Hope Nottingham/

Other statutory agencies such as the Fire Service / Police /Social Services /NHS in making referrals into services for
vulnerable clients. Even GPs are well place to see if someone is struggling with other issues affecting their mental health such
as debt/housing/benefits. They need to know where to refer for specialist help.

Response

Noted. Whilst there is already strong partner engagement, the above comments help to ensure we are able to identify
possible gaps in engagement. Where there are gaps, partners will be contacted to increase engagement

What are the key national/
local drivers/ policies or
strategies linked to this
priority?

Housing of refugees/Asylum seekers between 16-21 who are been allocated to Nottinghamshire.
No Health without Mental Health (National Strategy and Local Framework for Action) Suicide Prevention
(National Strategy and Local Framework for Action) Mental Health Crisis Concordat Mental Health Five Year Forward View

Welfare reforms; current financial situation of local government




79 abed

NICE TB Pathway Underserved Groups http://pathways.nice.org.uk/pathways/tuberculosis And the Care Act ...

The Care Act 2014 requires local authorities to promote an adult’s wellbeing in each decision that it makes, and this must
include considering the adult’s social and economic wellbeing, suitability of living accommodation and physical and mental
health and emotional wellbeing.

LA funding and funding priorities

Third sector funding

National government policy/legislation change

Response

Stronger reference has been included in the Strategy relating to linkages to mental health as a result of consultation
feedback.
Other points noted.

Do you have any other
comments specifically
relating to this priority?

People leaving institutions such as hospitals and prisons should have the opportunity to engage with housing options team
members before their release to try to ensure that they do not find themselves homeless when they leave. Those with
previous rent arrears who are homeless should not automatically be excluded from the housing list as there may have been
circumstances beyond their control i.e. mental health issues where support could have prevented eviction, or someone sent to
prison and not closed down tenancy properly but had previously been fully up to date with their rent etc.

Again

Avoid duplication of services to make any relevant funding more targeted and effective.

Map out what help is out there not only for general help (think this has already been done — ie Notts help yourself etc) but for specialist
help. Signposting often doesn’t work with vulnerable clients — they need specific referrals — date/time and in a location they can reach.
For example Eastwood people would find it difficult to access services in the City or even in Beeston which is their own borough —

itis 2 bus rides away.

Response

The need to ensure services are mapped out is clear and will be taken forward through the revision of the action plan.
Provision is made within allocations policies relating to discharge from institutions - specific reference is made to
joining up services within the Strategy

Deliver Effective
Services at the Point
of Contact

Pg 27 of the Homelessness Strategy

Does the priority give a
reasonable overview of
what we need to do? If

Excellent bespoke model and sits well with prevention. Missing is financial management training and support
a support pathway to provide quick access to housing for TB patients with or without recourse to public funds
Again as described in Priority 1 there needs to be a clear pathway for people diagnosed with active TB who are homeless and




G9 abed

not, what is missing?

have NRPFs as set out in the NICE Pathway -TB in under served groups see

link http://pathways.nice.org.uk/pathways/tuberculosis

Yes, but areas like Eastwood do not have an easy point of contact re homelessness/housing — this is only currently available through local
CABx in Eastwood hosting housing/homelessness appointments with LA/HA housing dept/providers

Response

Reference to financial management support has now been included
Regarding clients with NRPF - response as previous

What have been the main
achievements relating to
this priority in South
Nottinghamshire since the
last Homelessness Strategy
was published in 20137

A Single homelessness needs assessment was undertaken. The full needs assessment needs to include all aspects of
homelessness.
Mediation for young people at risk of being asked to leave home is good.

Response

Noted

What do you see as the
main challenges or
opportunities relating to
this priority over the next 5
years?

Identifying services which can meet this need.

Challenge — accessing sufficient stock to meet demand in a timely manner. Opportunity to liaise with house builders on the
type of accommodation that is most in demand, and encouraging them to build housing options to help meet that demand
i.e. the major developments taking place in the Rushcliffe area at the moment are all 2,3 or 4 bed executive homes, not
accessible for single people or families on low income or benefits.

Challenge again is reduce financial allocation — to be effective commissioners need to put in Contract Variations to deliver
alongside this model

Increasing numbers of younger adults with disabilities requiring independent accommodation. Also very concerned about the
older but not old adult with disability who requires supported accommodation — they often end up in provision for the elderly,
so inappropriate. Funding for Care in the Community may increase with the additional budget from 2020

In relation to supporting people with active TB and NRPF to be able to receive life saving treatment over a 6 to 12 month
period, therefore a housing pathway that recognises the need of this very small minority of people to support access to
treatment in a timely and responsive way. For this the person requires a stable place to live and eat to enable consistent

treatment regime to be achieved.

Impact of Welfare Reform/other national policy changes

Funding streams for LA’s and the third sector will continue to be under threat risking a robust multi agency approach.
On the other hand there are potential opportunities for cross sector partnerships to maximise funding opportunities



http://pathways.nice.org.uk/pathways/tuberculosis

99 abed

Response

Noted. The Strategy recognises these issues

What should be the key
actions to enable this
priority to be taken
forward over the next 5
years and how do you
think you/ your
organisation can help to
take the action forward?

To get partnership by in — need to pilot the model and evaluate the outcomes

Response

The Strategy recognises the importance of partnership working in delivering the priority outcomes

Which are the key
organisations
organisations/ contacts
that are essential to
driving this priority

Local Authority Housing Departments, Public Health and TB treatment service NUH
Citizens Advice
Nottinghamshire County Council
Borough Councils (ie Broxtowe)
Other voluntary agencies such as Framework/Hope Nottingham/
Other statutory agencies such as the Fire Service / Police /Social Services /NHS in making referrals into services for vulnerable clients.

forward?
Even GPs are well place to see if someone is struggling with other issues affecting their mental health such as debt/housing/benefits.
They need to know where to refer for specialist help.

Response Noted as previous

What are the key national/
local drivers/ policies or
strategies linked to this
priority?

Welfare reforms, Care in the community packages

NICE TB Pathway Underserved Groups http://pathways.nice.org.uk/pathways/tuberculosis And the Care Act ...

the Care Act 2014 requires local authorities to promote an adult’s wellbeing in each decision that it makes, and this must
include considering the adult's social and economic wellbeing, suitability of living accommodation and physical and mental
health and emotional wellbeing.

NICE Pathway -TB in under served groups see link http://pathways.nice.org.uk/pathways/tuberculosis

The Care Act 2014 requires local authorities to promote an adult’s wellbeing in each decision that it makes, and this must
include considering the adult's social and economic wellbeing, suitability of living accommodation and physical and mental
health and emotional wellbeing.

LA funding and funding priorities

Third sector funding

National government policy/legislation change




]9 abed

Response

Noted as previous

Do you have any other
comments specifically
relating to this priority?

Avoid duplication of services to make any relevant funding more targeted and effective.

Map out what help is out there not only for general help (think this has already been done —ie Notts help
yourself etc) but for specialist help. Signposting often doesn’t work with vulnerable clients — they need specific
referrals — date/time and in a location they can reach. For example Eastwood people would find it difficult to
access services in the City or even in Beeston which is their own borough — it is 2 bus rides away.

Response Noted as previous
PROVIDE Pg 28 of the Strategy
APPROPRIATE

ACCOMMODAT-

ION OPTIONS

Does the priority give a
reasonable overview of
what we need to do? If
not, what is missing?

quick, effective and appropriates housing options for patients with pulmonary TB or multi drug resistant TB so they can be
monitored until treatment completion. Expected standard for TB completion rates are over 85% to protect both patient and
public and avoid transmission of the disease and death

Again relating to people requiring treatment for active TB who have NRPFs see details in priority 1 and 3

Landlords should be encouraged to provide health promoting housing, which would entail awareness-raising and information.
Yes, however more detail on how engagement with the PRS will be rolled out.

Yes, but

Areas like Eastwood do not have an easy point of contact re homelessness/housing — this is only currently available through local CABx in
Eastwood hosting housing/homelessness appointments with LA/HA housing dept/providers

Response

Noted as previous.

What have been the main
achievements relating to
this priority in South
Nottinghamshire since the
last Homelessness Strategy
was published in 2013?

Regular Forum meeting




g9 abed

Response

Noted

What do you see as the
main challenges or
opportunities relating to
this priority over the next 5
years?

Supported housing sector is not growing in line with demand, main challenge is to encourage supported housing providers to
set up new accommodation options in the area.
As previously stated
Availability of rental property, welfare reform, effective communication challenges
Impact of Welfare Reform/other national policy changes
Funding streams for LA’s and the third sector will continue to be under threat risking a robust multi agency approach.
On the other hand there are potential opportunities for cross sector partnerships to maximise funding opportunities

Response

This is recognised within the Strategy

What should be the key
actions to enable this
priority to be taken
forward over the next 5
years and how do you
think you/ your
organisation can help to
take the action forward?

Ensure that a range of housing options are available and are used effectively
work with partners to support people to develop their independent living skills where appropriate
To include a pathway and prioritisation of accommodation for homeless people who have NRPFs and have a diagnosis of
active Tb that requires accommodation and stability to proceed with a 6 to 12 month treatment regime. See details set out in
priority 1 and 3.
A joined up approach on what is required from the PRS and how the process of housing the homeless will be supported by the
LA.

Again:

debt and the impact debt has on homelessness should be included in strategic and operational plans

homelessness prevention through high quality housing advice and support for people in private and public sector housing should be
maintained and increased across the county — this is essential from a fiscal cost reduction but also in the reduction/ prevention of the
emotional/physical/mental impact on families and individuals

areas like Eastwood have high deprivation and low investment

access to LA services has reduced drastically — the third sector is bridging that gap but can only do so with continued funding

CA have a strong track record of delivering debt advice across the region.
CA in Broxtowe have strong track record of delivering housing advice and support

Response

Response on TB previously stated

Which are the key
organisations
organisations/ contacts




69 abed

that are essential to
driving this priority
forward?

What are the key national/
local drivers/ policies or
strategies linked to this
priority?

NICE TB Pathway Underserved Groups http://pathways.nice.org.uk/pathways/tuberculosis And the Care Act ...

The Care Act 2014 requires local authorities to promote an adult’s wellbeing in each decision that it makes, and this must
include considering the adult's social and economic wellbeing, suitability of living accommodation and physical and mental
Health and emotional wellbeing.

Tuberculosis in under served groups NICE Pathway http://pathways.nice.org.uk/pathways/tuberculosisThe Care Act 2014
requires local authorities to promote an adult's wellbeing in each decision that it makes, and this must include considering the
adult’s social and economic wellbeing, suitability of living accommodation and physical and mental health and emotional
wellbeing.

Increased costly local and national regulation will impede this priority as additional cost reduces profit and therefore the ability
of landlords to house low income tenants

Response

Response on TB previously stated
As stated in the Strategy, we will ensure continued engagement with private landlords and their representatives to seek
to ensure opportunities to utilise the private rented sector are maximised.

Do you have any other
comments specifically
relating to this priority?

Support to enable a more generic client group make their households a success & sustainable.

It would be a quick win to sort this protracted problem out the volume is low but the impact on the individual is high and
could very easily be resolved with inclusion of a specific pathway for this in frequent scenario that has serious life course
impact (death of the person not enabled to access treatment and the risk of cross infection of others of this reportable
infection).

Response

Noted
Response on TB previously stated

MOVE PEOPLE
AWAY FROM
HOMELESSNESS

Pg 31 of the Strategy

Does the priority give a
reasonable overview of
what we need to do? If
not, what is missing?

Need to include financial management training and support
As previous

Response

Noted as previously

What have been the main




0/ abed

achievements relating to
this priority in South
Nottinghamshire since the
last Homelessness Strategy
was published in 20137?

What do you see as the
main challenges or
opportunities relating to
this priority over the next 5
years?

Challenge - having sufficient infrastructure and funds to provide appropriate level of support to tenancies that are starting to
fail. Opportunities - engage more with voluntary sector.
As previous

Response

Agreed. As previously stated, we will seek to ensure full engagement with partners through the delivery of this
Strategy.

What should be the key
actions to enable this
priority to be taken
forward over the next 5
years and how do you
think you/ your
organisation can help to
take the action forward?

As previous

Which are the key
organisations
organisations/ contacts
that are essential to
driving this priority
forward?

As previous

What are the key national/
local drivers/ policies or
strategies linked to this
priority?

As previous

Do you have any other
comments specifically
relating to this priority?

As previous




T/ obed

Do you have any final comments relating to the South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy?

The model is comprehensive. Need to be clear on what effectively can be delivered in the financial envelope so the expectations of those at risk of
homelessness are not let down

Noted — the action plan is carefully developed to ensure challenging but realistic actions



This page is intentionally left blank



(4921430 Juswdojanaqg pue ABajesg Buisnoj) j1sys uyopr

:Aq pajojdwod Juswssassy

12-L10Z ABajeng ssaussejawoy aiysweybunioN ynog

Passasse aq 0} 81npPadoud/adirIag/Aoijod

INIWSSISSVY SAI3AN LOVdNI ALITVYNDI

Page 73



(£10z 8unr ,0¢ — [udy 1) (skep

shep zL 29°cl | Bunuom) suopeoidde Ssaussajsuioy ssadoid 0} swiy abelsay LGOI
VYN 19 (£10Z 1snbny ¢ Je) suoneoydde Buisnoy ¢ pueg o) |

VN 661 (2102 1snbny 1€ Je) suopeoydde Buisnoy g pueg

VN 6¢ (£10Z 1snBny L€ 18) suopeoydde Buisnoy | pueg
(Zloz

sunr ,0€ — judy (L) uonenyis J1ay} paAjosel solApe Buisnoy woym

10} pue ‘j1ounod ay} payoeoidde oypp ssejswoy se Sanjasway)

GS 95 * P8.8pISuod oym spjoyasnoy Jo Jaquinu — SSaUSSa|aWoy Bunusaaig
eale Og bulipas 10} ejep s|qe|ieAe iso)e| 0) 8)ejal mojaq sainbi

yobie} _ 2dueuLlouad Juauny | Jojedipu] asuewopad Aoy

"(Nwa sseusssjawoy e yum suones|uebio
Aunwiwos pue Joypaes oygnd Jayjo pue sjounod Aunod anysweybumon ‘s|ouno) ybnouog Jo uonejussaiday Buisudwos) wnio4
SsousssjpWoH Aousby Jaju| asysweybunioN yinos ay; Aq paiopuow pue psjuswsidwi aq [Im yoym ‘ueld uojoe ue ysijqejsg

Ssausss|awWoy
Buipoe} pue Bunuanaid o} Bunejas (agjoysny ‘Bulpeg ‘smojxoig) aaysweybunloN Yynos ssoioe yoeosdde 8y} Jno 188

:0} a1e ABsjeu)s ay) Jo swie ay) ‘Alleoyioadg

"S8A|| s Juspisal Jno uo speduw

SAlleBau sy} asiwiuIL pue Ssaussa|swoy sonpal 0} Buppom ayioysny pue Bupso ‘amoxoig jo sybnoiog auysweybumon
Uinog 9aJy) ay) ssouoe Bupiom diysiauped sanosye sinsue 01 ss|diouud syj 1no 18s 0) si ABajens 9y} Jo wie Asy ay |
JUSWINOOD [Bul BY} OJul Pa) YdIym Jo synsal 8y} ‘7 L0z Alenige — 9102 J9qWBAON woly si1apjoyaye)s

Jo abues apIM B YlIMm UonEYNSU0D Yoom SAj9M} B 0} Jold 91.0Z Jo ued Jspe| sy} Buunp aoe(d %00) allysweybumoN yinog sso.ioe
S9OIAI9S SSBUSSO[OWOY JO MBIADL Y "SIBBA BAl) AIoAD Ises| je Absjeu)s sseussajawoy e ysignd o} pasinbai Ajjebsj si jlounog ey |

2INPad0id/a2inIag/Adljod au} Jo saAposalqo /sy

Page 74



'P8I8PISUOD 8q 0} sanss| sanifenba oy Ayunpoddo sgenjea papircid siy | "SoAljejuasaldal

PJojpue| sjeAud pue SHN 8y} :s969|00 [BO0] ‘S|IDUNOY) JBY)O -SORLBYD SSOUSSS|SWOH {821A19S UOIJEqOId BY) {[1oUnon) Ajunon
aulysweybumonN Buipnjour suonesiuebio Jsuped Jo abuel OPIM B WOJ} paAi@o8al a1om sesuodssy  "Sjual|o ssefaioy yym Buiiesp
suopesiueblo J0)oss paiy) pue yjesH 21gnd dllysweybumoN ‘spiojpueT [e100S ‘JIunod Alunod ‘sflouno) Buunoqybisu papnoul

sea)nsuo) "ABajens sy} jo Juswdojsaap ay) o) 9)NqLIU0d 0) sseuped 1oy seniunuoddo papiaocid pue (7 10z Alenugeq 9 - 9102
JSQUIBAON | 1) pouad j8am Z| e JOAO UONE)NSUOD SAISUBIXS suobiapun sey ABsjesis sy ‘uoseai siy} Jo4 “(Buiuies pue s|pjs pue
‘JuswAojdwa 0} ssedoe ‘Bulaqiiem pue yyeay [edisAyd pue jeyusw Buinoidwi ybnouy) se yons soualjisal ssausssjowoy Buisealou)

0} Bupe|as siopjoysye)s Jepim BuiAjoAul 40 souepodw ay) sebpajmouwoe osje ABsjeng ay | ‘Aisnoiraid psuiino uonejussaidal

40 sesudwod Yoiym wnio4 ssausssjawoH Aouaby 18U anysweybumoN yinog sy; ybnoiyy padojersp usaq sey Abajens ayy

"2inin} sy} ul sssjdLIoy awodsq Aew oym sjdoad os|e ‘sseusssjowoy Buioey 10 Bujpusuadxe Ajuaning si jey) suokue ‘Alledipung

8JIMIDS SIYj JO SI9P|OYI)YEYS PUE SIBWOISNO B} 818 OYM

(2102 yorel i€ — 910z 1udy

VN 001 | 1) peau Ajuoud ul pue sssjswioy Ajlreuonusiuiun ‘sjqibije spjoyasnon
VN 0l (2102 1snbny) Jsjsibas Buisnoy ay) Buiuiol sased MBN
(Z10z

VN 9¢ | 8unr ,0€ —judy .| ) peAal@oas suoneoydde ssausssjawoy Jo JaquinN
(£10Z aunf ,0¢ — [udy 1)

8 €8 | (s)8sm) uonepowwodoe Atesodwsa) ut Juads awn jo yjbuas| abeisay

Page 75



%t PojE}s JON
%l 8U10
%l Ysul snym
%8 ysiug suym
%S¢ 434}0 _YM
% 0€|g pue ajlym
%S UBISY pue allym
%S’ 9saulyD
%€ | yshugd oejg 4o xoelg
%G'L | yshug ueisy Jo ueisy

Aoy

Aq umopyeaiq Buimoyjoy sy smoys uonisodwod Buimojjoy sy} smoys 1918169y BuisnoH ayy woly eleq

%C0

dnoib aluy)s JeyiO aie oym sjuspisoy

%S’

ysnug

oB|g/ueaqqued/uesuly/yoe[g 81 Oym SJUSpISSY

%€C

sdnoub oluyle sidiynw/pexipy ale OYMm sjuapIsay

%6'C

Usnug UBISY/UBISY aJe Oum Sjuapisay

%1°€6

3lIYM 8Je oym sjuspisay

(1102 snsuad) smojloy se si Bulpan uj sjuspisal Jo umop)eaiq d1uy3s jo uomodoid ayj

Buimoj|o} ey} uo sey ainpesoidjasirses/Aarod siy} )

rSnsuad ‘spure|dwod ‘uoneynsuod woiy synsei buipnjou; sdnoib
oeduwi ayj Jnoge aAey Apeaije noA uopeuLIoul Jeym Mmojeq liejag

aoey

Page 76



6

deoipuey o
ssau||l [eyusaw o) anqy,

[4

Aungesip
feaisAyd o} ang,

JequinN

Aliqessuinp

:Ajngesip e psuodai

Jequinu Buimolioj ay} (2102 YMEIN L€ — 9102 14dY L) sjueoydde ssajswioy 81q1Bie 00 Y JO

Aypiqesiq

Juswubisseas Jopuab palejosp (%10 0} Bunenba) yueoydde sup

Juswubisseal Japuacn)

‘uswiom aie sjueoljdde pes) Jo %G 09 1ey} smoys ejep Jsjsifies Buisnoy

Xag

(%1) L IETNTe)

(%9) 9 paxiN

0 ueisy

(%¥) ¥ Yoelg

(%68) 68 SiYM
:SMOJ|0} se

pesLdwod Ayouyse ‘(2102 YdJBIN L€ — 9102 Iudy ) siuedydde sssjawoy aiqiBie 0oL 841 30

Page 77



Jueaydde pes| sy} Jo abe (£10z UoIe L€ — 910z Mdy |) sjueondde ssejawoy a|q1bile 001 8Y) JO

%SVl +G/.

%C 91 ¥.-G9

%6 ¥9-09

%S'€C 6S-Sv

%l'LC ¥-G¢

%96 -8l

pueq abe Aq umopyealq uosodwod Buimo|o} ay) smoys Jajsibay BuisnoH ay; wouy eleq oby

%6 LY paJlejoapun /aUON

%¢C0 wpiis

% uiisniy

%0 ysimepr

%<Z 0 npuiy

%E 6¥ uensuyo

%¥'0 siyppng

Yyey Aq umopyes.q uonisodwod Buimol|o) ay) SMoys J49)sibay BuisnoH ayj wouy ejeq J8119q pue uoibijay

%1 Aes 0} Jou Jajaig

%¥8 |enxasolo)aH

%20 uewom Aeq)

%S0 uew Aeo

%80 jenxasig

sSmoys ejep Jajsibas BuisnoH

uoneUBLIO [eNXaS

Page 78



"diysssuped |IAD

X9s aWes e u| ate Aay) Ji Ajjeolioads payse Jou ase Js)sibal Buisnoy 9y} ojuo sjueoijdde ‘Apusing

diysisuped

IIAID XSS SWES € Ul JO Pallew a1am sjuapisal Bullpas 21 ‘9 1eUl SMOYS SNSUSD | L0Z 8y

diysiauped
[IA1D pue abepuiep

uewom Jueubald e Buipnioul se payiuapl
SJom spjoyasnoy €} ‘(2102 UoIe L€ — 9102 [udy 1) sjueoydde ssejawoy s|qibie 00l 34U O

uonesijdde jo swn ay) je Jueubaisd aiom
Oym swsyds yoleasaWoH ay) jo sjueolidde Jo % 1ey) smoys Jajsiboy BuisnoH ay) wouj eyeq

Ayjuisjew pue Asueubaid

0 +G/
I (%) L ¥.-G9
(%1) L ¥9-09
(%6) 6 6S-GV |
(%95) 95 vv-G2
(%€¢E) €€ ¥2-9l
JaquinN aby

:SMOJ|0} SB SEM

Page 79



[ 10 /eb ase kayy Jeys psejs buiaey sjsibai Buisnoy
Y} uo ajdoad o siequinu moj Ajsanejel 8y} 0} enqg

0} piebal yym |iejop aAlb pue uonuspe
snooj Ajjleoyioads jou saop ABeesis sy ISIUM

uoneuaLIO [enxag

payijuspl suoN

'SaNnss| yjleay |ejusw yum syuepisal poddns
03} s8dlAIss y)eay |ejusu yum pebebus
Alineay s) aoinies Ssausssjawoy ay) ‘os|y
'9|qISsad0e Jleydjsaym aq 0} uolepoWWoIoe
Alesodwsa) Jo uoipodoud e Jo} Ajleaiyoads
Speuw sj uoisinold ‘Ajleuonippy  1oedw
Ajoaysod |im ssaussajswoy bBuipjoe) pue
Bunuenaud Jo snooy Buoys e ‘saljjigesip yym
ajdoad o} psebas yum iejep aAIb pue uonuape
sndo} Ajjesy1oads Jou seop ABa)ens ayy 1sium

Aynqesiq

"PeaU jJawun ue s) alay) 1ey)

sueaw Ajjenusjod sy ‘ssoinles olIoads Jopisuon
Jou seop Absjeyss ay; (jej0) ay; jo %1L°0 0} Bunenbs
‘Juedjjdde Buisnoy suo) Jspuabsueu) se saajeswoay)
Buikyiuepi sjdosd jo siaquinu moj AusA 8y} 0) eang

sjuopisal ||e 40} SO2IAIeS
Ssausss|swoy anoidwi o} syess Absjess ay 1

Juswubisseas Japuar)

payijuspl suoN

USWOM pue usW 1o} Ssaussajswoy
Buipioe; pue Bupusasid o) yoeoudde
SAlO8YS Ue apiaold o} sxoss ABajess ay |

Xog

psyiuspl suoN

"Joedwi Ajsanisod m SSaussajawoy

Buipioe) pue Bunuans.d J0 snooy Buoyss v
‘Pejussaidal-iano Ajjeuibiew aje spunoibyoeq
Jluyle paxiw pue xoe|g wolj sjuepisal

WoJj suofjejussald ‘Jequinu ui jjews AldAnejal
a.le Bulpag ui ssejswoy se Bunuesaud
Sjuspisal JIN'eg Jo Jaquinu sy} Is|Iymn

aoey

Joedw aAnebaN

}oedw) aApisod

rsdnoub Buimoj|os ay3 uo 3oeduw 8inpad0.d/adiatasjAoijod siy) jIm moH |

Page 80



uoisinold ul sdeb
89 pIn02 aJay) ‘alojassy) ‘diysisuped JIAID B Ul a1e
Asyy 41 payse jou ale syuesidde buisnoy ‘Ajjusiing

‘'sdnoub

[le SSOJOB Pa3BU UO paseq SSaussajauoy
Buipioey pue Bunueasid o) Buiejal sainsesw
BAIJ09)Je aoe|d ul oARY 0) s)aas ABajens ay |

diysiauped
pue abeLuep

pPaUiUSp! SUON

Auoud e ase uswom Jueubaid ‘Aojjod
uoljedo|e sy} ybnoay] "pasu ul JSOW SOy}
0] saoiAIes asijloud 0] syaas Abajel)s ay |

Aruiayep
pue Asueubaigd

paynuap! SUON

‘abe Jo sso|piebal ssoausss|swoy
Buipoey pue Buipuaas.id o) Buneja.l sainsesw
BAlj09)Je 9oe[d Ul aAeY 0} syoas Abejelis ay |

aby

patuspl suoN

"Joedwi AjpAasod

[m ssausss|swoy buipioe) pue Buusasid

JO SN20y Buol)s € ‘sylie} JuSISKIP WOl YIm
a|doad 0} psebas yum jiejep aAIb pue uonuaye
snooj Ajleay1oads jou saop ABsjens ay) IS

Jaljeq pue uoibiay

*dnoub siy} Jo spasu oljioads
Aue 190w pinom yoiym saoiAles 1oy Ajjeolinads
$921N0saJ SNY0J Jou saop ABajel)s oy} ‘(%z) [enxasiq

"Joedwi AjoAlisod |Im ssaussajawioy
Buipoe) pue Bunuaaald Jo snooy Buodis
e ‘|lenxasiq 1o ueiqsa) ‘Aeb ale oym sjuapisel

Page 81



Buisnon JSqWBAON | wsiueyoaw e pue ABejens Ssausssjawioy sy} Jo AiaAlep Aouaby Jajuj allysweybunon
'?YS uyor |  jo pus Ag 8y} 0} Buyejas sanss) saiyjenbs uo SNJ0j paseauou| uy YInog sy} 0) puswiwiosas o
¢OYM éi9deq awodlnp uonoy

cuswissasse siy) woly Bujsue ueid asjazes 1nok ut papnjaul aq |im suonoe Jeyp

“S8IIUNWWOS INo Jo spasu asIBAIP Ay} SjeaW uolsiaoid jeyy ainsus o} si wnio siyy jo 3]0J By} Jo JUsWs|e Asy

WSl ssausssjswioy e yym suopesiuebio Jooes 2lignd pue Ajunwwioo jo sbues

B pue |1ouno) Ajunon allysweybumon ‘sjounon ybnoiog syioysny pue Bulpeg ‘emoixoug woly seAejussaidal jo sesudwod
USIYM Wnio4 sseusse|aLlioy Kouaby Jsyu) aJlysweybuioN yinog sy ybnouyy pasoyuow pue Pajuswaldwn aq [im ABojes)s 8yl

SP93U 9s19AIp Ss}eaw ainpadoud/eoiates/Aaijod SIY) 8insus 0} 3no papued aq |IM Bupopuow JeymMm

‘sSiy}
9pnjoul 0} wuoj uopeoidde Buisnoy sy; Buipuswe alojdxe [|1m appn ‘sdiysisupied 1M1 0} prebey Ulim pajeyjos s ejep ou ‘Apuaiing

‘uonedjidde ssausssjawoy e yim
SllysweybunioN yinos u sisuped yoeosdde oym Sployssnoy o} Bunejau Ajjesyioads P3je|j0o s| uopeuwtiogu selenbe Jayuny jeyy
pasodoud s )| “Jeisibe. Buisnoy ay) uo Sjuspises o} Bune|al sonsies safjilenbe 03 psebas ypm Ajjenuue Pale||oo s ejep ‘Ajjuauns

SISEq [enuue ue uo ABejess ssaussajewoy ayj jo uonejuswaidw sy} uo sjusI
Sssjswoy 0} bunejes usyepspun usaq sey Bunoyuow saiyenbs jeym uo winio4 sy o} yoeq podai 0} sjounoy saiy; sy Jo yoes
10} WnJo4 ssausssjawoH Aouaby-ieju) ay) o} epew ©Q ||IM uonepuswiwodal B ‘Juswssessy joedw senifenb3 suyy Jo ynsey e sy

ésyoedw aapebau Aue ssalppe 0) 3inpadoud/asiatasAaljod ayj o3 dpeuw aq pjnhoa sabueys EEE

Page 82



(aAnejussaiday
Ayenbg 9)B10dI0g) s snsrearang

teaanna ....w.r.m..ﬁ0=0_w T&UN:WEV. ........:ﬁ...—uw:m_w

"PaJinbai s) Juswssasse yoedwy usjiny e uayy ou I

A épaiinbai s uonebnsaaus 19y} ou jey; pue Ajisianip

40 spueys ayj jje 104 passasse Alybnoaoy, uaaq aAey 3inpadoud/asiniasihorjod Sy} Jo syoadse je e Paysnes noA aiy
089 4920 o J|

Juswdojanag
pue ABejeng uoisinoud sdiysisuped
Buisnoy ur sdeb ou aunsus PUe sadjA1es Jojiuow o) sdiysseuped [!AID punole wioy uoyeolidde Buisnoy

‘I'I|8ys uyop
289 1900
Juswdojenaq
pue Abojeng

Buisnopy

‘I9YS uyop

JO pus Ag IA1D 40 Juslxa By} Jo ssausseme ue sinsus o 1

sapiunwwon

£102 | ®s19AIp uno Jo spasu 9y} Joaw seoines Jo AlsAljap ainsus
18quiBsAON | 0} uapuo uy sjuedjidde ssajsioy 0} Bunejal ejep sal)enbs

J0 pus Ag | S181|02 0} aoed ui S| Wsiueyosw e Jey) ainsus o
— Sl O3 908|d Ul si ws

8y} uo Aiobejes e Buipnjou aJiojdx3g

Ssdjswoy se bunuasaid

ajdoad o} buiyejas Ajjesijioads ejep
seniienbs sjejjoo 0} pes| e Amuapi o)
‘Paiuspl ase sdeb

S1eym abueyo 1oy suonepuswiwosy
UM winio syy 0} yoeq pajuesaid
Sl s)nsai sy} Jey) pue Sisqwiaw e Aq
uayeuspun s Ssaussejswoy o} bunejas
senssi sajjijenbs Jo juswissosse

[enuue ue jey wnioy S$SBUSSjaWOoN
————— = ¥4 IO Ssousss|jawiop

/

089 w010
Juswdojanagg

pue Absjeng

‘Sjqeynbe sie saoinies ainsus 0} payuapl

Page 83



Page 84



Agenda Iltem 5

Gedling

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Gedling Conversation 2017

Date: 7 December 2017
Author: Director of Organisational Development & Democratic Services
Wards Affected

Borough-wide.

Purpose

To give feedback to Members on the Gedling Conversation 2017.
Key Decision

This is not a key Decision.

Background

1.1 In June 2017 the Council began the fourth annual Gedling
Conversation. The Gedling Conversation represents a set of
consultations aiming to seek the views of our community about how
our performance has been over the previous years and what our
priorities should be over the coming year.

The approach in 2017 was slightly different to previous years and a
combined consultation exercise was organised, using the following
methods:

e Roadshows
¢ Residents Satisfaction Survey

e Focus groups for those residents whose responses are under
represented

1.2  In order to make the Council visible to as many residents as possible,
the roadshows were held in every ward in the borough.
Representatives from Senior Leadership Team and service mangers
were present at each of the roadshows and ward councillors were
invited to attend the roadshow held in their ward.

Page 85



1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

The main theme for talking to residents was ‘Life in Gedling Borough’
and 2 roadshows were held each day over a 2 week period in July
2017.

The majority of feedback from the roadshows was positive about the
Council and living in the borough. On the whole, residents were
satisfied and made many positive comments about the place. Specific
comments were made about individual wards, however there are
several common themes in the feedback:

- Poor condition of roads

- Speeding traffic

- Availability of public transport
- Anti-social behaviour.

These issues are also reflected in the feedback received in the
Satisfaction Survey results.

A copy of the satisfaction survey was delivered to each household in
the borough. It was also available to be completed online. The survey
had a very good response rate of 3,422 responses. This represents
6.7% of households, which is a good result for this type of
consultation. By way of comparison, in 2015 the Council received
2,271 responses representing 4.2% of households. In addition the
residents’ satisfaction surveys carried out by the County Council in
2015 and 2016 both had 1,069 responses across the county.

Members will recall that social media was actively used this year to
promote the survey; share information to a wider audience and target
under-represented groups. Although the maijority of replies were
returned by post, 26.3% of replies were completed online, which is an
increase on the 7% completed online in 2015.

The profile of the respondents in terms of ethnicity and gender seems
fairly proportionate to the profile of the borough. As with previous
surveys the age profile of the respondents, on the other hand,
suggests that the sample is skewed towards the older population.
However, for the first time, the responses from 35-54 year olds are
fairly proportionate to the profile of the borough. In view of the fact that
the younger population is under-represented in the responses, the
Youth Council is being consulted to seek views of young people about
life in the borough.

The results of the satisfaction survey will be reported to Cabinet in the
form of a presentation at the meeting.

Page 86



Proposal

2 It is proposed that Cabinet notes the feedback on the Gedling
Conversation 2017.

Alternative Options
3 Not to note the feedback on the Gedling Conversation.

Financial Implications

4 None directly arising from this report.
Appendices
5 None.

Background Papers
6 Satisfaction Survey results.
Recommendation
THAT: the feedback on the Gedling Conversation 2017 is noted.
Reasons for Recommendations

7 To ensure Members are informed about the views of our community
obtained through the Gedling Conversation 2017.

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Gedling #;

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) Annual Audit

and Update
Date: 7t December 2017
Author: Director of Organisational Development and Democratic Services
Wards Affected

Not applicable
Purpose of the Report

To update Members in relation to the Council’'s use of powers under the
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) from April 2016 — March
2017, in accordance with the policy.

Key Decision
This is not a Key Decision.
Background

1.1 Under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) local
authorities have the power to authorise directed surveillance (usually
covert cameras or covert observations by officers) and the use of Covert
Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS) (essentially undercover officers
conducting surveillance) if the authorisation is necessary for the
prevention and detection of crime or preventing disorder and if the
surveillance is proportionate to the aims it seeks to achieve. In respect of
directed surveillance, save for a small number of licensing offences, any
crime or disorder being prevented or detected using RIPA must be a
criminal offence which attracts a minimum of 6 months in custody, the so-
called “serious crime” threshold. The authorisations under RIPA can only
be given by Directors or the Chief Executive, and the entire process is
overseen by the Director of Organisational Development and Democratic
Services as the Senior Responsible Officer for RIPA (SRO) with

Page 89



assistance from the RIPA Co-ordinating Officer, the Service Manager for
Legal Services. Since 15t November 2012, any RIPA authorisations or
renewals must also have judicial approval from a Justice of the Peace.
This is done at the Nottingham Magistrates’ Court.

1.2 The Council’'s RIPA process is subject to intense scrutiny and roughly
every three years, the Council is inspected by the OSC to ensure that its
RIPA processes, procedures, policies and practices are sound. The
Council was inspected by an Inspector from the OSC on 18t April 2016.
The Inspector concluded that Gedling Borough Council is a good
performing Council. The recommendations made by the Inspector
following the inspection were reported to Cabinet on 4t August 2016.

1.3 As part of the Council’s RIPA policy, members are required to consider
and review the Council’'s use of RIPA powers and its policy and guidance
at least once a year. Cabinet last received a report in August 2016 in
relation to RIPA usage and powers. There is also a requirement under the
policy that internal reporting to members is done throughout the year to
update on RIPA usage. The Council’'s RIPA Co-ordinating officer provides
updates throughout the year to the Portfolio Holder for Public protection in
relation to the Council’'s RIPA usage.

Internal Audit

1.6  In addition to the external inspection by the OSC, the RIPA Co-ordinating
officer also carries out annual audits of RIPA usage. In 2016-17 there
were no authorisations given for directed surveillance or the use of covert
human intelligence sources.

1.7  Whilst the Council’s use of RIPA powers has declined, there are offences
which the Council investigate, for example fly-tipping offences which do
cross the serious crime threshold and officers can still use the RIPA
powers in certain circumstances for such investigations where it is
necessary and proportionate to do so.

1.8 Even where the Council’s current RIPA usage is low, it is still essential
that the Council keep the RIPA processes and procedures under close
scrutiny. The Council will continue to be subject to inspection in relation to
its use of the powers by the OSC and as such the Council’s policy,
processes, training and review of RIPA usage must continue to ensure our
processes remain fit for purpose.

Training

Page 90



1.8

As part of the Council’s RIPA policy, and to ensure authorising officers
and investigating officers keep up to date and knowledgeable in respect of
RIPA powers, officers receive annual training in relation to RIPA. In March
2017 authorising officers, investigating officers and the Portfolio Holder for
Public Protection received RIPA training form an external trainer. The
training was a useful update and provided some interesting discussion
around the use of surveillance in investigations and the necessity for RIPA
authorisations when surveillance is carried out through the use of social
media, for example repeated surveillance of open source sites such as
Facebook, where no privacy settings are applied. Whilst one look on an
individual’'s Facebook page as part of an investigation would not be
classed as surveillance, repeated checks of the site to establish
information about an individual in relation to an investigation is likely to
require authorisation under RIPA.

Social Media and RIPA

1.9

1.10

The use of social media as part of investigations is something that the
OSC have highlighted as an area of concern. In March 2017, the OSC
wrote to all local authorities suggesting that they carry out an internal audit
of the use of social media and the internet for investigations and official
business. Whilst using the internet as a one off, as part of information
gathering on an individual will not necessarily amount to surveillance, as
explained above, repeated use of the internet and social media sites to
gather information about an individual in relation to a particular issue, may
amount to surveillance. In addition, if the individual is unaware that the
information is being accessed repeatedly as part of an investigation or
otherwise, the surveillance is likely to be covert.

If covert surveillance is taking place of an individual, and the investigation
relates to a crime which passes the serious crime threshold then a RIPA
authorisation should be obtained. If the covert surveillance is in relation to
an issue which does not pass the serious crime threshold, for example
debt recovery, the protection of a RIPA authorisation cannot be obtained.
In those circumstances, consideration needs to be given as to whether it is
necessary and proportionate to essentially interfere with an individual’s
right to privacy for the purposes of debt recovery. Article 8 of the Human
Rights Act 1998 — a person’s right to respect for their private and family
life, home and correspondence, is a qualified right which a local authority
can “interfere” with if it is necessary in a democratic society in the interests
of national security, public safety or the economic well-being of the
country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health
or morals, or for the protection of the rights and freedoms of others. The
threshold for such interference is high, essentially an authorisation under
RIPA demonstrates that the interference with an individual’'s human rights
satisfies the terms of the qualification, so it is necessary, and in relation to

Page 91



local authorities, the only ground on which an authorisation can be given is
that it is necessary for the prevention and detection of crime. A RIPA
authorisation therefore essentially deems the interference with the right
lawful. Without such an authorisation, any activity which interferes with an
individual’s human rights may not be considered to be lawful. As such,
local authorities need to be cautious about using the internet or social
media sites in this way. The OSC have made is clear that even though the
sites may be open source and the individuals may not have certain privacy
settings in place, that does not mean they are consenting to surveillance
being carried out on them.

1.11 In accordance with the OSC’s proposals, an internal audit has been
undertaken of all departments to establish their use of the internet and
social media for investigation and Council business. Whilst many
departments confirmed they do use the internet as part of their business,
there is no use of the internet, according to the audit results, which would
amount to surveillance. Those departments which have investigatory
powers as part of their business, for example public protection may use
social media and the internet as part of an investigation but this tends to
be one off checks to gather information, a “drive by” rather than repeated
use on each case. Officers in this section are trained in RIPA and have
been advised to seek legal advice if they feel surveillance will be required
as part of an investigation.

1.12 Another way in which social media may be used as an investigative tool is
if for example, a Council officer, as part of an investigation created a
Facebook page pretending to be an individual in order to establish a
relationship with a perpetrator for the purposes of gathering information
relating to an offence. Such activity is known as using a covert human
intelligence source (CHIS). Authorisation for use of a CHIS can be given
under RIPA. The results of the audit revealed that no such activity is being
undertaken within the Council. Again, those departments who may wish to
use such an investigative technique are fully aware of the RIPA powers
and are also advised to seek legal advice before undertaking such activity.

1.13 It is important that RIPA awareness is maintained throughout the
organisation even if authorisations are not being obtained. The Senior
Responsible Officer and RIPA Co-ordinator will continue to monitor,
review and report on RIPA usage in line with the legislation and the
Council’s policy.

Proposal

21  Following the audit, and consideration of the Council’s policy, it is
proposed that no changes are required to the policy document at this time

Page 92



and that members therefore note the details of the work that has been
undertaken in respect of RIPA outlined in this report.

Alternative Options

3.1 An alternative option is that Members do not receive and consider
feedback in respect of the RIPA audits and activity. This would go against
the Council’'s RIPA Policy which requires annual review of the Council’s
Policy and procedure by Members. This would also be contrary to
recommendations from the OSC.

3.2 Members could choose to recommend amendments to the RIPA Policy or
processes. However, having reviewed the policy and processes, it does
remain fit for purpose in its current form.

Financial Implications

None arising from this report.

Appendices

None

Background Papers

None identified.

Recommendation
THAT:
(a) Members note the contents of the report.

Reasons for Recommendation

(a) To ensure the Executive is updated in respect of the Council’'s use of
RIPA in line with the Council’s current RIPA Policy document.

(b) To ensure the Executive is updated in relation to scrutiny of the Council’s
RIPA processes and procedures.

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



) Agenda ltem 7
Gedlin

Borough Council

Report to Cabinet

Subject: Change to Outside Body Representation

Date: 7 December 2017
Author: Service Manager Democratic Services
Wards Affected

Borough-wide
Purpose

To enable Cabinet to authorise a change in Gedling Borough Council’s representation on the
Nottingham Express Transit Development Board.

Key Decision

This is not a Key Decision.

Background

1.1 The Labour Group has advised that Councillor Clarke is to replace Councillor
Hollingsworth as the Council’s representative on the Nottingham Express Transit
Development Board.

Proposal

2.1 To authorise that Councillor Clarke is appointed to the Nottingham Express Transit
Development Board in place of Councillor Hollingsworth with immediate effect.

Alternative Options

3.1 Not to authorise a change of the Council’s representative. This would result in
Councillor Hollingsworth carrying on as the Council’s appointee.

3.2 To appoint an alternative representative to the Board.

Financial Implications

4 There are no financial implications associated with this report.
Appendices
5 None.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Alec Dubberley on (0115) 901 3906

Page 95



Background Papers
6 None identified.
Recommendation
THAT:

Councillor John Clarke is appointed as Gedling Borough Council’s representative on the
Nottingham Express Transit Development Board in place of Councillor Hollingsworth.

Reason for Recommendations

7 To ensure that the Council continues to be represented on outside bodies that are
considered important to the Borough and its residents.

Page 96



	Agenda
	2 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 2 November 2017.
	4 South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy
	20170327111523_001903_0002941_southnottinghamshirehomelessnessstrategy201720214March2017
	Enc. 2 for South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy
	Enc. 3 for South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy
	Enc. 4 for South Nottinghamshire Homelessness Strategy

	5 Gedling Conversation 2017
	6 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) Annual Audit and Update
	7 Change to Outside Body Representation

